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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

NATURE OF BUSINESS
Kamiesharg Municipality is a local municipality performing the functions as set out in the Constitution. (Act no 105 of 1996}

COUNTRY OF ORIGIN AND LEGAL FORM
South African Category B Muricipality (Local Municipality) as defined by the Municipal Structures Act. (Act no 117 of 1998)

JURISDICTION

The Kamiesberg Municipality inciudes the following areas of Garies, Hondeklipbaai, Kamassies, Kheis, Kharkams, Kamieskroon,
Klipfontein, Koiingnaas, Leliefontein, Lepelsfontein, MNourivier, Paulshoek, Rooifentein, Soebatsfoniein, Spoegrivier and
Tweerlvier.
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F Strauss
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Garies
8220

AUDITORS

Auditor-General
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KIMBERLEY

8300

PRINCIPLE BANKERS
First Nationai Bank

ATTORNEYS

Van der Wall & Partners
TNK Attorneys

Wessels & Smith inc
Godwin Bossr & Ass
Matthews & Pariners

WEBSITE
www kamiesberg.gov.za




KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
GENERAL INFORMATION

RELEVANT LEGISLATION

Constitution (Act no.108 of 1998)

Basic Conditicns of Employment Act {Act no 75 of 1997)
Collective Agreements

Division of Revenue Act

Electricity Act {Act no 41 of 1987}

Employmeni Equity Act {Act no 55 of 1998)

Housing Act (Act no 107 of 1897)

Infrastructure Grants

Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations

Municipal Finance Managemant Act {Act no 56 of 2003)
Municipal Pfanning and Performance Management Regulations
Municipal Property Rales Act (Act no 6 of 2004)
Municipal Regulations on Standard Chart of Accounts
Municipal Structures Act (Act no 117 of 1968)

Municipal Systems Act (Act no 32 of 2000)

Municipal Systems Amendment Act (Act no 7 of 2011}
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. & of 2000}
SALBC Leave Reguiations

Skills Development Lavies Act (Act no 8 of 1989}
Supply Chain Management Regulations, 2005

The Income Tax Act

Unemployment Insurance Act (Act no 30 of 1966}

Value Added Tax Act

Water Services Act (Act no 108 of 1997)

MEMBERS OF THE KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

SC Nero (Mayor)

MW Cloete (Speaker)
BC Brandt (Chief Whip)
LE Petersen

MJB Hanekom

CC Kordom

RG Cioete
CCC Coelzea
S8 Cloete

DJ Markus
PA Smit
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| am responsible for the preparation of these annuai financial statements year ended 30
June 2024, which are set out on pages 5 to 102 in terms of Section 126 (1) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act and which | have signed on behalf of the Municipality.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations, guidelines
and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

| acknowledge that | am ultimately responsibie for the system of internal financial control and
that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records
can be relied on.

| have reviewed the Municipality's cash fiow forecast for the year fo 30 June 2025 and am
satisfied that the Municipality can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future.

The external audiors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the
Municipality's financial statements.

| certify that the remuneration of Councillors and in-kind benefits are within the upper limits
of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration -
of Public Officer Bearers Act and the Minister of Provinciat and Local Governiment's
determination in accordance with this Act.

The annual financial statements were prepared on the going concern basis and the

municipality has neither the intention nor the need to ligquidate or curtail materially the scale
of the municipality.

o[nl 1y

RT Heukes \ Date J
Muticipal Manager ;
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2024

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Property
Intangible Assets

Heritage Assets

Current Assefs

Inventory

Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Taxes

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assels

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

Leng-term Borrowings
Non-current Provisions
Non-current Employee Benefils

Current Liabilities

Consumer Deposits
Current Employee Benefits

Trade and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions

Unspent Transfers and Subsidies
Current Portion of Long-term Borrowings

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Accumutated Surplus/{Deficit)

Total Net Assets and Liabilities
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Notes
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o ™~Noo~Nm
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10
11
12

13
14
15
16
10

2024 2023
R R

264 879 918 271 466 125
233698 792 240 201 241
30 951 346 31 040 629
224 380 218 855
5400 5 400
39 346 050 31 743 446
2 768 00S 1261 682
1C 583 020 8 650 883
6075738 4 476 388
19 080 762 16 503 278
838 821 851215
304 225 967 303 209 571
44 957 576 38 743 048
356 395 894 317
40 770 181 34132731
3832 GGG 3916 000
126 762 601 107 167 323
1575473 1553 57+
3169 165 2 840 485
120 709 430 96 119 269
1308 532 5035 004
- 1618 994
171 720 177 145 810 370
132 555733 157 299 201
132 555 733 157 299 201
304 275 909 303 209 571




KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

REVENUE

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
Taxation Revenue

Property Rates

Transfer Revenue

Government Grants and Subsidies
Contributed Property, Plant and Equipment

Other Revenue

Actuariai Gains

Fines, Penalties and Forfeiis

Interest Earned - Non-exchange Transactions
Operational Revenue

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Service Charges

Sales of Goods and Rendering of Services
Renial from Fixed Assets

interest Earned - External Investments
interest Farned - Exchange Transactions
Licences and Permits

Agency Services

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURE

Employee related Costs
Remuneration of Councillors
Bad Debts Writien Off
Contracted Services
Depreciation and Amortisation
Actuarial Losses

Finance Costs

Bulk Purchases

inventory Consumed
Qperational Costs

Total Expenditure

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

Reversal of Impairment Loss/(Impairment Loss) on Receivables
Gains/{Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets
Reversal of impairment L.oss/(Impairment Loss} on Fixed Assets

NET SURPLUSHDEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
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Notes

18

19

12

25
26

20
21
22
23
24

26
27

28
29

30
31
6.1
32

33
34
35

2024 2023
R R
62 872 931 64 068 149
10 242 020 12 429 688
10 242 020 12 429 688
44 060 205 42 034 338
44 080 205 42 034 339
8 570 706 9 604 122
562 000 499 532
549 148
5021 114 5 496 890
2 987 043 3 607 552
25 735 DB3 17 293 170
17 627 847 10 247 777
43 425 27 134
212 687 174 017
488 640 429 295
5 836 166 5 990 044
150 379 1645
1375 938 423 258
88 608 014 81361 319
(29 687 392) (28 256 576)
(4 960 218) (4 703 220
(2375 211) -
(3 757 474) (3 255 637)
(21 091 216) (20 787 941)
(15571 019} (8 797 724)
(16 700 789) (13 867 743)
{1 496 190) (2 953 270)
(10 307 911) (8 080 469)

(105 947 420}

(90 702 580)

(17 339 406) (9 341 260)
(11277 953) (22 132 044)

(36 852) 364 978
{28 654 211) {31108 326)
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Balance af 1 July 2022
Correction of Error - note 36.9

Restated balance
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Net Surplus/(Deficit) previously reported
Effects of Correction of Errors - note 36.10

Restated balance at 30 June 2023
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Balance at 30 June 2024

Page 7

Accumulated

Surplus/ Total
{Deficit)
R R
170 790 318 170 790 318
17 617 208 17 617 208
188 407 526 188 407 528

(31108 328)

(31 108 326)

(26 290 168)

{26 290 168)

3

(4 818 158) (4 818 158)
157 299 200 157 299 200
(28 654 211) (28 654 211)
128 644 990 128 644 990




KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts

Taxation

Service Charges

Other Revenue
Government - Operating
Government - Capital
Inferest

Cash paymenis

Suppliers and Employees
Finance Charges

Net Cash from Operating Activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Praceeds on Disposal of Investment Property
Purchase of Intangible Assets

Net Cash from Investing Activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Borrowing

Net Cash from Financing Activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalenis at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Page 8

Notes

37

38

2024 2023
R R
1093 162 33 969
9613 582 2 105 655
4770 398 4233 378
37 009 735 35 687 101
3324 000 5 762 500
11 345 820 11 916 229
(45 645 291) (48 346 957)
(11 862 241) (7 605 398)
9 849 264 3 786 877
(7 595 855) (5 457 023)
372 000 -
(80 8786) -
(7 284 731) (5 457 023)
(1957 915) (1 464 966)
(1 957 915) (1 464 966)
406 618 (3 135 112)
851 215 3 986 327
838 521 851 215
(12 694) (3 135 113)
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES APPLIED IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting and are in accordance with historical cost conventions unless specified
otherwise.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Finance
Management Act (MFMA) and effective Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations and directives issued by
the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act, (Act No 56 of 2003).

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the
GRAP reporting framework, have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 8,
10 and 11 of GRAP 3 and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the
Accounting Standards Board.

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting
is permitted or required by a Standard of GRAP.

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous
year’s financial statements except where an exemption or transitional provision have
been granted. The details of any changes in accounting policies are explained in the
relevant notes to the annual financial statements.

In terms of Directive 7: “The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards
of GRAP” issued by the Accounting Standards Board, the Municipality applied
deemed cost to Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible
Assets where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be determined.

1.2. PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Amounts reflected in the financial statements are in South African Rand and at actual
values. Financial values are rounded to the nearest one Rand.

1.3. GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION‘
These annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
1.4. COM#ARATIVE INFORMATION
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is
amended, prior period comparative amounts are restated, unless a standard of GRAP

does not require the restatements of comparative information. The nature and reason
for the reclassification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been identified in
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1.5.

1.6

1.7.

the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and
the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change
in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far
as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

CONSISTENT AND NEW ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Amendments to accounting policies are reported as and when deemed necessary
based on the relevance of any such amendment to the format and presentation of the
financial statements.

. MATERIALITY

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or
collectively, influence the decision or assessments of users made on the basis of the
financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or
misstatements judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the
information item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor. Materiality
is determined as 1% of total operating expenditure. This materiality is from
management’s perspective and does not correlate with the auditor’s materiality.

Management has determined materiality for the purposes of explaining variances
between the final budget amounts and actual results included in the annual financial
statements, as R905 000 and a variance of more than 10%.

PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION

The presentation of budget information is prepared in accordance with GRAP 24 and
guidelines issued by National Treasury.

Budget information is presented on an accrual basis and is based on the same period
as the actual amounts. The budget information is therefore on a comparable basis to
the actual amounts.

The comparable information includes the following:

+ the approved and final budget amounts;
« actual amounts and final budget amounts;

A reconciliation is provided in the budget comparison regarding classification
differences between the approved budget and the actual figure.

Explanations for differences between the approved and final budget are included in
the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Explanations for material differences between the final budget amounts and actual
amounts are included in the notes to the annual financial statements.

Explanations for material differences between the final budget amounts and actual
amounts are included in the notes to the annual financial statements. The municipality
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

considers a variance between the actual and budget of more than 10% of the
budgeted value as material, provided that such variance exceeds R905 000. All
variances less than R905 000 are considered immaterial.

The disclosure of comparative information in respect of the previous period is not
required in terms of GRAP 24.

1.8. STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following GRAP standards and Interpretations of the Standards of GRAP have
been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
municipality:

REFERENCE | TOPIC EFFECTIVE
DATE
GRAP 103 Heritage assets Unknown

There are proposed amendments to the
classification of mixed-use assets, cultural
significance and the fair value accounting.

The amendments to the Standard are approved
by the Board. The amendments may not be
applied by entities in developing an accounting
policy. Entities are only permitted to adopt the
amendments once an effective date has been
determined by the Minister of Finance.

No significant impact is expected as the
Municipality’s current treatment is already in line
with the Standards treatment.

GRAP 104 Financial Instruments 1 April 2025

The objective of this Standard is to establish
principles for recognising, measuring, presenting
and disclosing financial instruments.

The Municipality might need to revise the
categories of financial instruments and the
impairment model.

GRAP 1: Presentation of Financial statements: Going | Unknown
Going concern
concern The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the

basis for presentation of general-purpose
financial statements, to ensure comparability
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

REFERENCE

TOPIC

EFFECTIVE
DATE

both with the entity’s financial statements of
previous periods and with the financial
statements of other entities. Adjustments for
going concern proposed to provide guidance on
the preparation of AFS as going concern and the
related disclosure.

The transitional provisions are specified in the
revised Standard. The amendments may not be
applied by entities in developing an accounting
policy. Entities are only permitted to adopt the
amendments once an effective date has been
determined by the Minister of Finance.

No significant impact is expected as the
Municipality's current freatment is already in line
with the Standards treatment.

Improvement
to GRAP
standards
{2023)

Improvement to GRAP standards (2023)

The Improvements are approved by the Board.
The effective date is yet to be determined by the
Minister of Finance. The Improvements may not
pe applied by entities in developing an
accounting policy. Entities are only permitted to
adopt the Improvements once an effective date
has been determined by the Minister of Finance.

No significant impact is expected as the
Municipality’s current treatment is already in line
with the Standards treatment.

Unknown

GRAP 105,
GRAP 106
and GRAP
107
(amendments)

Transfer of Functions and Mergers

The amendments to the Standards are approved
by the Board. The amendments may not be
applied by entities in developing an accounting
policy. Entities are only permitted to adopt the
amendments once an effective date has been
determined by the Minister of Finance.

Unknown

Guideline

Application of Materiality _of Financial

Statements

The guideline is not authoritative but only
encourage.

No effective
date as only
encouraged
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Advanced Consideration

The interpretation is to provide guidance on
determining the transaction date for purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or
revenue (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

Early adoption of the Interpretation is
encouraged.

No significant impact is expected as the foreign
currency transactions and advance
consideration is not relevant to the operations of
the Municipality.

REFERENCE | TOPIC EFFECTIVE
DATE
No significant impact is expected as the
Municipality’s current treatment is already in line
with the Standards treatment.
iGRAP 22 Foreign  Currency  Transactions and | 1 April 2025

1.9. RESERVES

1.9.1. Capital Replacement Reserve (CRR)

In order to finance the provision of infrastructure and other items of property, plant
and equipment from internal sources, funds are transferred from the accumulated
surplus / (deficit) to the CRR. The cash funds in the CRR can only be utilized for
the purpose of purchasing/ construction items of property, plant and equipment
and may not be used for the maintenance of these items. The CRR is reduced
and the accumulated surplus / (Deficit) is credited by a corresponding amount
when the amounts in the CRR are utilized.

1.10. LEASES

1.10.1. Municipality as Lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and
rewards associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to the Municipality.
Property, plant and equipment or intangible assets (excluding licensing
agreements for such items as motion picture films, video recordings, plays,
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1.10.2.

manuscripts, patents and copyrights) subject to finance lease agreements are
initially recognised at the lower of the asset'’s fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liabilities are initially
recognised at the inception of the lease and are measured as the sum of the
minimum lease payments due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for
the effect of interest. In discounting the lease payments, the Municipality uses
the interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and unguaranteed
residual value to the fair value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in
accordance with the stated accounting policies applicable to property, plant and
equipment, investment property or intangibles assets. The lease liability is
reduced by the lease payments, which are allocated between the lease finance
cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method. Lease
finance costs are expensed when incurred. The accounting policies relating to
the disclosure of finance liability and de-recognition of financial instruments are
applied to lease payables.

Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above
definition. Operating lease rentals are recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. The difference between the straight-lined
expenses and actual payments made will give rise to a liability. The Municipality
recognises the aggregate benefit of incentives as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term, on a straight-line basis unless another systematic basis is
representative of the time pattern of the lessee’s benefit from the use of the
leased asset. :

Municipality as Lessor

Under a finance lease, the municipality recognises the lease payments to be
received in terms of a lease agreement as an asset (receivable). The receivable
is calculated as the sum of all the minimum lease payments to be received, plus
any unguaranteed residual accruing to the municipality, discounted at the interest
rate implicit in the lease. The receivable is reduced by the capital portion of the
lease instalments received, with the interest portion being recognised as interest
revenue on a time proportionate basis. The accounting policies relating to the
disclosure of financial assets and derecognition and impairment of financial
instruments are applied to lease receivables.

Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above
definition. Operating lease rentals are recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. The difference between the straight-lined revenue
and actual payments received will give rise to an asset. The Municipality shall
recognise the aggregate cost of incentives as a reduction of rental revenue over
the lease term, on a straight-line basis unless another systematic basis is
representative of the time pattern over which the benefit of the leased asset is
diminished.
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5

1.13.

UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Conditional government grants are subject to specific conditions. If these specific
conditions are not met, the monies received are repayable.

Unspent conditional grants are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on the
Statement of Financial Position. They represent unspent government grants,
subsidies and contributions from the public.

This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the
creation and utilisation of this creditor:

o Unspent conditional grants are recognised as a liability when the grant is
received.

e When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions met is
transferred to revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

e The cash which backs up the creditor is invested until it is utilised.

e Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions.
If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the liability. If it is the
Municipality’s interest it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of
Financial Performance. :

UNSPENT PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS

Public contributions are subject to specific conditions. If these specific conditions
are not met, the monies received are repayable.

Unspent public contributions are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on
the Statement of Financial Position. They represent unspent contributions from the
public.

This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the
creation and utilisation of this creditor:

e Unspent public contributions are recognised as a liability when the grant is
received.

e When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions met is
transferred to revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

e The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as individual investment or part
of the general investments of the municipality until it is utilised.

o Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with the public
contribution conditions. If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the
creditor. If it is the municipality’s interest it is recognised as interest earned in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Municipality has a present or constructive

obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
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1.14.

obligation and a reliable estimate of the provision can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of
future outflows of resources. Where the effect is material, non-current provisions
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the
market's current assessment of the time value of money, adjusted for risks specific
to the liability.

The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. A contingent asset is
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are
reflected in the amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence
that they will occur. Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into
account in measuring a provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses. The present obligation under an onerous contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only when the following criteria over
and above the recognition criteria of a provision have been met:

(a) The municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at
least:

e the business or part of a business concerned;

¢ the principal locations affected;

¢ the location, function and approximate number of employees who will be
compensated for terminating their services;

e the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

¢ when the plan will be implemented.

(b) The Municipality has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will
carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its
main features to those affected by it.

The amount recognised as a provision shall be the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
derecognised.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Post-Retirement Medical Obligations
The Municipality provides post-retirement medical benefits by subsidizing the

medical aid contributions of certain retired staff according to the rules of the
medical aid funds. Council pays 60% as a contribution and the remaining 40%
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(b)

{c)

is paid by the members. The entitiement to these benefits is usually conditionat
on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion
of a minimum service period. The present value of the net defined benefit liability
is actuarially determined in accordance with GRAP 25 — Employee benefits
{using a discount rate applicable to high-guality government bonds). The plan
is unfunded.

These contributions are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution.
The interest cost of the defined benefit obligation is recognised as a finance cost
in the Statement of Financial Performance, as it meets the definition of Interest
Cost in GRAP 25. The liability was calcuiated using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method. The liability in respect of current pensioners is
regarded as fully accrued and is therefore not split betwsen a past (or accrued)
and future in-service element. The liability is recognised at the fair value of the
obligation. Payments made by the Municipality are set off against the liability,
including notional interest, resuiting from the valuation by the actuaries and are
charged against the Statement of Financial Performance as employee benefits
upon valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the Statement of
Financial Performance in the period that it occurs. These obligations are valued
periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided to employees who achieve certain pre-
determined milestones of service within the Municipality. The Municipality’s
obligation under these plans is valued by independent qualified actuaries
periodically and the corresponding liability is raised. Payments are set off
against the net defined benefit liability, including notional interest, resulting from
the valuation by the actuaries and are charged against the Statement of
Financial Performance as finance cost upon valuation, as it meets the definition
of net interest in GRAP 25. Defined benefit plans are post-employment plans
other than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the Statement of
Financial Performance in the period that it ccours. These obligations are vaiued
periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Staff Leave
Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees. The

liability is based on the total amount of leave days due to employees at year-
end and also on the total remuneration package of the employee.
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Accumulated leave is carried forward and can be used in future periods if the
current period’s entitlement is not used in full. All unused leave will be paid out
to the specific employee at the end of that employee’s employment term.

Accumulated leave is vesting.
(d) Staff Bonuses

Liabilities for staff bonuses are recognised as they accrue to employees. The
liability at year-end is based on a bonus accrued at year-end for each employee.

(e) Other Short-term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period,
the entity recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

« as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid.
If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the
benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense)
to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payments or a cash refund; and

+ as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

1.15. CONSUMER DEPOSITS

Consumer deposits are disclosed as a current liability. Consumer deposits are levied
in line with the council's policy to consumers when services are initially connected.
When services are disconnected or terminated, the outstanding deposit is utilised
against any arrear accounts the consumer might be liable for on that date. Any
excess deposit after all debt is settled is refunded to the specific consumer.

1.16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
1.16.1. Initial Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including
infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be
used during more than one year. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
entity, and the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably. Items of
property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as assets on the acquisition
date and are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
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1.16.2.

1.16.3.

manner intended by the Municipality. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted
in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration
(i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value
of that asset on the date acquired, including any transaction costs.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a
non-monetary asset or monetary asset, or a combination of monetary and non-
monetary assets, the assets acquired are initially measured at fair value (the
cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, its deemed cost is
the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and
equipment when the municipality expects to use them during more than one
period.

Infrastructure assets are any assets that are part of a network of similar assets.
Infrastructure assets are treated similarly to all other assets of the municipality in
terms of the asset management policy. If cost can however not be established,
then infrastructure assets will be initially measured and recognised at depreciated
replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is an accepted fair value
calculation for assets where there is no active and liquid market.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Where the Municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the
asset being replaced and capitalises the new component. Subsequent
expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or
future economic benefits associated with the asset.

Depreciation and Impairment

Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as having an indefinite useful life.
Depreciation on assets other than land is calculated on the depreciable amount,
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Components of assets that are significant in relation
to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately.
Changes to the useful life of assets are reviewed if there is an indication that a
change may have occurred in the estimated useful life. If the expectation differs
from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for in accordance with
GRAP 3 either prospectively as a change in the accounting policy or
retrospectively as a prior period error depending on the specific circumstances
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Property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. The impairment charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance is the excess of the carrying value over the recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment been recognised. A reversal of impairment is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Incomplete construction work is stated at historical cost. Depreciation only
commences when the asset is available for use. The municipality assesses at
each reporting date if there is an indication of impairment.

The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:

Land and Buildings Years
Land Indefinite
Buildings 2-100
Infrastructure

Roads and Streets 1-70
Storm Water 1-50
Electricity 1-40
Water 1-70
Sanitation 1-30
Waste Management 1-50
Other 30
Community

Recreation Grounds 4-40
Housing 5-40
Community Halls 2-40
Libraries 2-40
Parks and Gardens 2-40
Clinics 2-40
Security and Policing 2-40
Other 2-40

Finance lease assets

Office equipment 2-5
Other assets 2-5
Other

Motor Vehicles 5-10
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1.16.4.

1.16.5.

Furniture and other Office equipment 3-10
Furniture and fittings 2-32
Plant and Equipment 2-15
Computer equipment 3-5

De-recognition

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is
disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential
expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Land and Buildings and Other Assets - application of deemed cost
(Directive 7)

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as
contained in Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December
2009. The Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an
asset could not be determined. For Land and Buildings, the fair value as
determined by a valuator was used to determine the deemed cost as on 1 July
2007. For Other Assets, the depreciation cost method was used to establish the
deemed cost as on 1 July 2007.

1.17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1371

Initial Recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical
substance.

An asset meets the identifiability criterion in the definition of an intangible asset
when it:

e is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the entity and
sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together
with a related contract, asset or liability; or

e arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding
arrangements) or other legal rights (excluding rights granted by statute),
regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the entity
or other rights and obligations.

The Municipality recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial
Position only when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or
service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Municipality and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
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1.17.2

1.17.3.

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria
before they are capitalised. Research expenditure is never capitalised, while
development expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that:

the municipality intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale;

it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;

the municipality has the resources to complete the project;

the municipality has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

it is probable that the municipality will receive future economic benefits or
service potential; and

e the Municipality can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
monetary asset, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the
asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s
fair value was not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an intangible asset is amortised
over the useful life where that useful life is finite. Where the useful life is indefinite,
the asset is not amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test.

Amortisation and Impairment

Amortisation is charged to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Amortisation of
an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole
asset and that have different useful lives are amortised separately. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed
at each year’s end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. The annual amortisation rates are based on the following
estimated useful lives:

Intangible Assets Years
Computer Software 2-5
Computer Software Licenses 2-5

Changes to the useful life of assets are reviewed if there is an indication that a
change may have occurred in the estimated useful life. If the expectation differs
from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for in accordance with
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1.17.4.

1.41.5.

GRAP 3 either prospectively as a change in the accounting policy or
retrospectively as a prior period error depending on the specific circumstances.

De-recognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there
are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the
asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost (Directive 7)

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as
contained in Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December
2009. The Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an
asset could not be determined. For Intangible Assets the depreciation cost
method was used to establish the deemed cost as on 1 July 2007.

1.18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

1181

Initial Recognition
Investment property shall be recognised as an asset when and only when:

e it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are
associated with the investment property will flow to the entity, and
e the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Investment property includes property (land or a building, or part of a building, or
both land and buildings held under a finance lease) held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than held to meet service delivery objectives, the
production or supply of goods or services, or the sale of an asset in the ordinary
course of operations. Property with a currently undetermined use is also
classified as investment property.

At initial recognition, the Municipality measures investment property at cost
including transaction costs once it meets the definition of investment property.
However, where an investment property was acquired through a non-exchange
transaction (i.e. where it acquired the investment property for no or a nominal
value), its cost is its fair value as of the date of acquisition, including transaction
cost. The cost of self-constructed investment property is measured at cost.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change
in use.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of use change.
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1.18,2.

1.18.3.

1.18.4.

1.18.5.

For a transfer from investment property to inventory (view sale), the deemed cost
for subsequent accounting is the fair value as of the date of the change.

For a transfer from owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
measured at fair value, the difference between the carrying value and fair value
at the reporting date shall be treated as a revaluation.

For a transfer from inventory to investment property (operating lease), the
municipality shall apply an accounting policy for operating leases.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of investment property are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Land
is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Depreciation and Impairment — Cost Model

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of an asset
begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole
asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
each year's end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Investment Property Years

. Buildings 30

Changes to the useful life of assets are reviewed if there is an indication that a
change may have occurred in the estimated useful life. If the expectation differs
from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for in accordance with
GRAP 3 either prospectively as a change in the accounting policy or
retrospectively as a prior period error depending on the specific circumstances.

De-recognition

Investment property is derecognised when it is disposed of or when there are no
further economic benefits expected from the use of the investment property. The
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of investment property
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost (Directive 7)
The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as

contained in Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December
2009. The Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an
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asset could not be determined. The fair value as determined by a valuator was
used to determine the deemed cost as on 1 July 2007.

1.19. HERITAGE ASSETS

1.19.1.

1:99.2:

1.19.3.

1.19.4.

Initial Recognition

A heritage asset is defined as an asset that has a cultural, environmental,
historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and is held and
preserved indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

A heritage asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the
Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

A heritage asset that qualifies for recognition as an asset is measured at its cost.
Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost
is deemed to be its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

After recognition as an asset, heritage assets are carried at its cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation and Impairment
Heritage assets are not depreciated

Heritage assets are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. The impairment recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
is the excess of the carrying value over the recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment been recognised. A reversal of impairment is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

De-recognition

Heritage assets are derecognised when it is disposed of or when there are no
further economic benefits expected from the use of the heritage asset. The gain
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of a heritage asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value of the heritage
asset and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.19.5. Application of deemed cost (Directive 7)

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as
contained in Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December
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2009. The Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset
could not be determined. The fair value as determined by a valuator was used to
determine the deemed cost as on 1 July 2011.

1.20. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
1.20.1. Cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets held with the primary objective of generating
a commercial return.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the municipality estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount.

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
Municipality considers the following indications:

(a) External sources of information

o During the period, an asset's market value has declined significantly
more than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or
normal use;

e Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality have
taken place during the period, or will take place in the near future, in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
Municipality operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated,;

o Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have
increased during the period, and those increases are likely to affect the
discount rate used in calculating an asset's value in use and decrease
the asset's recoverable amount materially.

(b) Internal sources of information

e Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset;

 Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality have
taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in the near
future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or is
expected to be used. These changes include the asset becoming idle,
plans to discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset
belongs, plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected
date, and reassessing the useful life of an asset as finite rather than
indefinite;

o Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the
economic performance of an asset is, or will be, worse than expected.

The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-
generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset
shall only occur when there is clear evidence that such a re-designation is
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1.20.2.

appropriate. A re-designation, by itself, does not necessarily trigger an
impairment test or a reversal of an impairment loss. Instead, the indication for an
impairment test or a reversal of an impairment loss arises from, as a minimum,
the indications listed above.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for
an individual asset unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation)
charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised
carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the
asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss has
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Non-cash-generating assets

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Municipality estimates the asset’s

recoverable service amount.

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
Municipality considers the following indications:
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(a) External sources of information

o Cessation, or near cessation, of the demand or need for services
provided by the asset;

o Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality
have taken place during the period or will take place in the near future,
in the technological, legal or government policy environment in which the
Municipality operates.

(b) Internal sources of information

e Evidence is available of physical damage to an asset;

o  Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality
have taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in the
near future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used
or is expected to be used. These changes include the asset becoming
idle, plans to discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset
belongs, or plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected
date;

e A decision to halt the construction of the asset before it is complete or in
a usable condition;

e FEvidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the
service performance of an asset is, or will be, significantly worse than
expected.

An asset's recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating
asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. If the recoverable service
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. That reduction is an
impairment loss recorded in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the
asset’s remaining service potential. The present value of the remaining service
potential of the asset is determined using any one of the following approaches:

depreciation replacement cost approach - the present value of the remaining
service potential of an asset is determined as the depreciated replacement
cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the
asset's gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in
its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction
(replication) of the existing asset or through the replacement of its gross
service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the
reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less
accumulated depreciation calculated based on such cost, to reflect the
already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

restoration cost approach - the cost of restoring the service potential of an
asset to its pre-impaired level. Under this approach, the present value of the
remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the
estimated restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the
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remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is
usually determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of
the asset, whichever is lower.

e service unit approach - the present value of the remaining service potential of
the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining service
potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number
of service units expected from the asset in its impaired state. As in the
restoration cost approach, the current cost of replacing the remaining service
potential of the asset before impairment is usually determined as the
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before impairment,
whichever is lower.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in
an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the
costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard of
GRAP. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation
decrease in accordance with that Standard of GRAP.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication
that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the Municipality
estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable
service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods. Such a reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.21. INVENTORIES
1.21.1. Initial Recognition

Inventories comprise of current assets held for sale, consumption or distribution
during the ordinary course of business. Inventories are recognised as an asset
if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Municipality, and the cost of the
inventories can be measured reliably. Inventories are initially recognised at cost.
Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus non-recoverable taxes, transport
costs and any other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and
condition. Where inventory is manufactured, constructed or produced, the cost
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includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during the
manufacturing process.

Water inventory is measured by multiplying the cost per kilo litre of purified water
by the amount of water in storage.

Where inventory is acquired by the Municipality for no or nominal consideration
(i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value
of the item on the date acquired.

Subsequent Measurement

Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, land, materials and supplies, water
and work-in-progress, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
unless they are to be distributed at no or nominal charge, in which case they are
measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Redundant and
slow-moving inventories are identified and written down. Differences arising on
the valuation of inventory are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the year in which they arose. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories arising from an increase in net realisable value or
current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the number of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that
the inventory was sold, distributed, written off or consumed unless that cost
qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

In general, the basis of allocating cost to inventory items is the first-in-first-out
method.

Water inventory is measured annually at the reporting date by way of dip readings
and the calculated volume in the distribution network.

Land held for sale is measured as the lower of cost and current replacement cost.
The cost of land held for sale is assigned by using specific identification of their
individual costs. Land is transferred from Investment Property to Inventory at
carrying value when it is available for sale in the ordinary course of operations or
the process of development for sale.

1.22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial Position include
receivables (both from exchange transactions and non-exchange transactions),
cash and cash equivalents, annuity loans and payables (both from exchange and
non-exchange transactions). The future utilization of Unspent Conditional Grants is
evaluated in order to determine whether it is treated as a financial instrument.

- Page 46



KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1.22.1.

1222

Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the Municipality becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument at fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial
liability. If finance charges in respect of financial assets and financial liabilities
are significantly different from similar charges usually obtained in an open market
transaction, adjusted for the specific risks of the Municipality, such differences
are immediately recognised in the period it occurs, and the unamortised portion
adjusted over the period of the loan transactions.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets are categorised according to their nature as either financial
assets at fair value, financial assets at amortised cost or financial assets at cost.
Financial Liabilities are categorised as either at fair value, financial liabilities at
cost or financial liabilities carried at amortised cost ("other”). The subsequent
measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on this categorisation.

1.22.2.1. Receivables

Receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

For amounts due from debtors carried at amortised cost, the Municipality first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. Objective evidence of impairment
includes significant financial difficulties of the debtor, the probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or
delinquency in payments. If the Municipality determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the
original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans together with the associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the municipality.
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1.22.2,3.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate if material. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

Payables and Annuity Loans

Financial liabilities consist of tfrade and other payables and annuity loans. They
are categorised as financial liabilities held at amortised cost, are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using an
effective interest rate, which is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus
interest.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking institutions with
maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, highly liquid deposits and net bank
overdrafts. The Municipality categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial
assets carried at amortised cost.

Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on
bank overdrafts are expensed as incurred. Amounts owing in respect of bank
overdrafts are categorised as financial liabilities: other financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost.

1.22.3. De-recognition

1.22.3.1. Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Municipality has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Municipality has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.
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When the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the old asset is derecognised and a new asset
is recognised to the extent of the Municipality’s continuing involvement in the
asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Municipality could be required
to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Municipality’s continuing involvement is the amount of
the transferred asset that the Municipality may repurchase, except that in the
case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Municipality’s continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and
the option exercise price.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the Statement of Financial Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.23. STATUTORY RECEIVABLES

Statutory receivables arise from iegislation, supporting regulations, or similar means
and require settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Re

ceivables that arise due to contractual arrangements are accounted for in terms

of the accounting policy on Financial Instruments. Statutory receivables can arise
from both exchange and non-exchange transactions.
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1.23.2.

1.23.3.

Initial Recognition

Statutory receivables are recognised when the related revenue is recognised or
when the receivable meets the definition of an asset.

Subsequent Measurement

The Municipality initially measures the statutory receivables at their transaction
amount. The Municipality measure statutory receivables after initial recognition
using the cost method. Under the cost method, the initial measurement of the
receivable is changed subsequent to reflect any:

(a) interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable,
(b) impairment losses; and
(c) amounts derecognised.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication
that a statutory receivable may be impaired. If there is an indication that a
statutory receivable may be impaired, the Municipality measures the impairment
loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying
amount. Where the carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash
flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable is reduced, through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance. In estimating future cash flows, the Municipality
considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will receive in future.
Consequently, where the effect of the time value of money is material, the
Municipality discounts the estimated future cash flows using a rate that reflects
the current risk-free rate and any risks specific to the statutory receivable for
which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is
revised if there has been a change in the estimates used since the last
impairment loss was recognised, or to reflect the effect of discounting the
estimated cash flows. Any previously recognised impairment loss is adjusted by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition
The Municipality derecognises a statutory receivable when:

(a) the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are
waived,;

(b) the Municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the receivable; or

(c) the Municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the receivable, has transferred control of the
receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to
sell the receivable in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and can
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exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional
restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the Municipality:

i. derecognise the receivable; and
. recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained
in the transfer.

1.24. REVENUE
1.24.1. Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the
Municipality received revenue from another entity without directly giving
approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange
transactions is generally recognised to the extent that the related receipt or
receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no liability to repay
the amount.

Government Grants and Subsidies received, or receivable are recognised when
the resources that have been transferred meet the criteria for recognition as an
asset. A corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or
donation is conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the
conditions attached to the grant are met. Grants without any conditions attached
are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.

Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entitlement to this
revenue arises. At the time of initial recognition, the full amount of revenue is
recognised. If the Municipality does not enforce its obligation to collect the
revenue, this would be considered a subsequent event. Collection charges are
recognised when such amounts are legally enforceable. Rebates and discounts
are offset against the related revenue, in terms of IGRAP 1, as there is no
intention of collecting this revenue.

Fine Revenue constitutes both spot fines and summonses. Fine revenue is
recognised when the spot fine or summons is issued. In cases where fines and
summonses are issued by another government institute, revenue will only be
recognised by the Municipality when the receivable meets the definition of an
asset.

Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised when all
conditions associated with the contribution have been met or where the
contribution is to finance property, plant and equipment when such items of
property, plant and equipment qualify for recognition and first become available
for use by the Municipality. Where public contributions have been received but
the Municipality has not met the related conditions, it is recognised as an unspent
public contribution (liability).

Revenue from third parties i.e. insurance payments for assets impaired, are
recognised when it can be measured reliably and is not being offset against the
related expenses of repairs or renewals of the impaired assets.
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Contributed property, plant and equipment are recognised when such items of
property, plant and equipment qualify for recognition and become available for
use by the Municipality.

All unclaimed deposits are initially recognised as a liability until 36 months expires
when all unclaimed deposits into the Municipality's bank account will be treated
as revenue. This policy is in line with the prescribed debt principle as enforced
by the law.

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful
expenditure is based on legislated procedures, including those set out in the
Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) and is recognised when
the recovery thereof from the responsible councillors or officials is virtually
certain.

Debt forgiven is recognised when the former debt no longer meets the definition
of a liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability , provided that the
debt forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a contribution from owners.
Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of the
debt forgiven.

Revenue shall be measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, a Municipality recognises an
asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured
at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise
a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the
best estimate of the amount required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised
as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability will
be recognised as revenue.

Services in-kind that are significant to the Municipality’s operations are
recognised as assets and the related revenue when:

o it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow
to the Municipality; and
) the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

If the services in-kind are not significant to the Municipality’s operations or do not
satisfy the above-mentioned criteria, the Municipality only disclose the nature and
type of services in-kind received during the reporting period. When the criteria
for recognition are satisfied, services in-kind are measured on initial recognition
at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Services in-kind include services
provided by individuals to the Municipality and the right to use assets in a non-
exchange transaction. These services meet the definition of an asset because
the Municipality controls the resource from which future economic benefits or
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service potential is expected to flow to the Municipality. The assets are
immediately consumed and a transaction of equal value is also recognised to
reflect the consumption of these services in-kind, resulting in a decrease of the
asset and an increase in an expense. The Municipality, therefore, recognises an
expense and related revenue for the consumption of services in-kind.

Revenue arising from the legislation is recognised in accordance with the
approved tariff.

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the
Municipality directly in return for services rendered or goods sold, the value of
which approximates the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions
have been satisfied:

e The Municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

e The Municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Municipality;

e The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Revenue from the services rendered is recognised when:

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o ltis probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality;

e The stage of completion at the reporting date can be measured reliably;

e The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue shall be recognised only to the extent of the
expenses recognised that are recoverable.

At the time of initial recognition, the full amount of revenue is recognised where
the Municipality has an enforceable legal obligation to collect unless the individual
collectability is considered to be improbable. If the Municipality does not
successfully enforce its obligation to collect the revenue this would be considered
a subsequent event.

Service charges relating to electricity and water are based on consumption and
a basic charge as per Council resolution. Meters are read on a monthly basis
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and are recognised as revenue when invoiced. Provisional estimates of
consumption are made monthly when meter readings have not been performed.
The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue when
invoiced. Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the
invoicing period in which meters have been read. These adjustments are
recognised as revenue in the invoicing period.

Revenue from the sale of electricity prepaid meter cards is recognised at the point
of sale.

Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis in
arrears by applying the approved tariff to each property that has improvements.
Tariffs are determined per category of property usage and are levied monthly
based on the recorded number of refuse points per property.

Service charges relating to sanitation (sewerage) are recognised on a monthly
basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to each property that has
improvements. Tariffs are determined per category of property usage. In the case
of residential property, a fixed monthly tariff is levied and in the case of
commercial property a tariff is levied based on the number of sewerage
connections on the property. Service charges are based on a basic charge as per
Council resolution.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease agreement.

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is
recognised when the relevant service is rendered by applying the relevant tariff.
This includes the issuing of licences and permits, sale of goods and services and
operational revenue.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and
rewards in those goods are passed to the consumer.

Revenue arising out of situations where the municipality acts as an agent on
behalf of another entity (the principal) is limited to the amount of any fee or
commission payable to the municipality as compensation for executing the
agreed services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The amount of revenue arising from a transaction is usually determined by an
agreement between the entity and the purchaser or user of the asset or service.
It is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking
into account the amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by
the entity.
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In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equivalents and
the amount of revenue is the amount of cash or cash equivalents received or
receivable. However, when the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the
fair value of the consideration may be less than the nominal amount of cash
received or receivable. When the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing
transaction, the fair value of the consideration is determined by discounting all
future receipts using an imputed rate of interest. The imputed rate of interest is
the more clearly determinable of either:

. The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit
rating; or

o A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the
current cash sales price of the goods or services.

The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the
consideration is recognised as interest revenue.

When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which
are of a similar nature and value, the exchange is not regarded as a transaction
that generates revenue. When goods are sold or services are rendered in
exchange for dissimilar goods or services, the exchange is regarded as a
transaction that generates revenue. The revenue is measured at the fair value of
the goods or services received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the goods or services received
cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of the
goods or services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred.

1.25. ACCOUNTING BY PRINCIPALS AND AGENTS

A principal-agent arrangement exists where there is a binding arrangement in which
one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with third parties on behalf, and for
the benefit of, another entity (the principal).

The municipality can be either the agent or the principal in terms of the
circumstances of the arrangement.

Where the municipality is considered the principal, all revenues, expenses, liabilities
and assets are recorded in the records of the municipality in accordance with the
relevant standards of GRAP.

Where the municipality is the agent of the transaction, only the portion of revenue
and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the transactions on behalf of the
principal is recorded with unspent or money due being recorded in terms of GRAP
104: Financial Instruments.
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Identification

Special consideration is given to the classification of an agreement (once the
standard is triggered) to carefully consider whether the municipality is an agent. The
considerations include (all of) the following:

e Who determines significant terms?

¢ Who receives the benefit from the transactions?

e |s the municipality exposed to the variability of the outcome?

If these are not met, but the standard is applicable, the municipality would be
regarded as the principal in the transaction.

The municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the
rights and obligations of the various parties established in the binding arrangement.
In the assessment reference is made to substance over form. Therefore the exact
wording of the contract is not the only indicator (for example if reference is made to
“agent”). If rights and obligations are substantially transferred this could indicate a
principal/agent arrangement. If not the arrangement is accounted for as a normal
supplier/customer relationship.

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS: (Municipality as grantor)

Identification

Service concession arrangements of the municipality include the provision of
mandated functions on behalf of the municipality by the operator for a specified
period, for which the operator is compensated for its services over the period of the
service concession arrangement.

Initial Recognition

Service concession assets are measured initially at fair value except where the
assets are existing assets of the municipality in which case the assets are
reclassified at their carrying amounts. Service concession assets will be identified
separately.

The service concession liability is recognised and initially measured at:

e The same amount as the service concession asset,

o Adjusted by the amount of any other consideration (e.g., cash) from the
municipality to the operator, or from the operator to the municipality.

Subsequent Measurement

The municipality initially measures the service concession asset at fair value if it Is
not an existing asset of the municipality.

After initial recognition, the municipality applies the measurement (including
impairment) and derecognition principles to the service concession asset applicable
to similar items of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets or Heritage
Assets.
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Where the municipality has an unconditional obligation to pay cash or another
financial asset to the operator for the construction, development, acquisition, or
upgrade of a service concession asset, the municipality accounts for the liability as
a financial liability.

The municipality allocates the payments to the operator and accounts for them
according to their substance as a reduction in the service concession liability, a
finance charge, and charges for services provided by the operator.

Other Liabilities, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Revenue

The municipality accounts for other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent
assets arising from a service concession arrangement in accordance with the policy
on Provisions, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets and Financial
Instruments.

The municipality accounts for revenues from a service concession arrangement,
other than those relating to the grant of a right to the operator model, in accordance
with the principles of Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

Dividing the arrangement

When the municipality pays for the construction, development, acquisition, or
upgrade of a service concession asset partly by incurring a financial liability and
partly by the grant of a right to the operator, it accounts separately for each part of
the total liability.

Recognition of the performance obligation and the right to receive significant
interest in a service concession asset ‘

Were the municipality controls a significant residual interest in a service concession
asset at the end of the service concession arrangement through ownership,
beneficial entitlement or otherwise, and the arrangement does not constitute a
finance or an operating lease, the municipality recognises its right to receive the
residual interest (i.e. a receivable) in the service concession asset at the
commencement of the arrangement. The value of the receivable at the end of the
service concession arrangement reflects the value of the service concession asset
as if it were already in the age and the condition expected at the end of the service
concession arrangement.

TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS (Municipality as acquirer)

A function is an integrated set of activities that is capable of being conducted and
managed to achieve a Municipality's objectives, either by providing economic
benefits or service potential.

A transfer of functions is the reorganisation and/or the re-allocation of functions
between Municipalities by transferring functions between Municipalities or into
another entity.
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1.28.

An asset is identifiable if it either:

o isseparable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the Municipality
and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or
together with a related contract, asset or liability; or

e arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding
arrangements) or other legal rights (excluding rights granted by statute),
regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the
Municipality or other rights and obligations.

The Municipality accounts for each transfer of functions between entities not under
common control by applying the acquisition method. Applying the acquisition
method requires:

(a) identifying the acquirer (Municipality);

(b) determining the acquisition date;

(c) recognising and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree; and

(d) recognising the difference between (c) and the consideration transferred to the
seller.

As of the acquisition date, the Municipality recognises the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed meets the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements and the recognition criteria in
the applicable Standards of GRAP at the acquisition date. In addition, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are part of what the Municipality and the
acquiree (or its former owners) agreed in the binding arrangement.

The Municipality measures the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed at their acquisition-date fair values.

The Municipality subsequently measures and accounts for assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in accordance with other applicable Standards of GRAP.

RELATED PARTIES

The Municipality resolved to adopt some of the disclosure requirements as per
GRAP 20 - “Related Party Disclosures”.

A related party is a person or an entity:
° with the ability to control or jointly control the other party,

o or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa,
o or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Page 58




KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The following are regarded as related parties of the Municipality:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Municipality if that person:

e has control or joint control over the Municipality.

e has significant influence over the Municipalities. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the Municipality.

e is a member of the management of the Municipality or its controlling
entity.

(b)  An entity is related to the Municipality if any of the following conditions apply:

e the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that
each controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow controlled entity is
related to the others).

e one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of an economic entity of which the
other entity is a member).

o both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

e one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

e the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the Municipality or an entity related to the Municipality. If the
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related
to the entity.

o the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

» a person identified in (a) has significant influence over that entity or is a
member of the management of that entity (or its controlling entity).

o the entity, or any member of a group of which it is part, provides
management services to the reporting entity or to the controlling entity of
the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence or be influenced by that person in their dealings with the
Municipality. A person is considered to be a close member of the family of another
person if they:

(a) are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage; or
(b) are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legal consanguinity
or affinity.

Management includes all persons having the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Municipality, including:

(a) all members of the governing body of the Municipality;

(b) a member of the governing body of an economic entity who has the authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Municipality;
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1.30.

(c) any key advisors of a member, or sub-committees, of the governing body who
has the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Municipality; and

(d) the senior management team of the Municipality, including the chief executive
officer or permanent head of the Municipality, unless already included in (a).

Management personnel include:

(a) All directors or members of the governing body of the Municipality, being the
Executive Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Speaker and members of the Mayoral
Committee;

(b) Other persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the reporting Municipality being the Municipal
Manager, Chief Financial Officer and all other managers reporting directly to
the Municipal Manager or as designated by the Municipal Manager.

Remuneration of management includes remuneration derived from services
provided to the Municipality in their capacity as members of the management team
or employees. Benefits derived directly or indirectly from the Municipality for services
in any capacity other than as an employee or a member of management do not meet
the definition of remuneration. Remuneration of management excludes any
consideration provided solely as reimbursement for expenditure incurred by those
persons for the benefit of the Municipality.

The Municipality operates in an economic environment currently dominated by
entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African government. As a result of
the Constitutional independence of all three spheres of government in South Africa,
only parties within the same sphere of government will be considered to be related
parties. Only transactions with such parties which are not at arm’s length and not
on normal commercial terms are disclosed.

UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

Unauthorised expenditure is an expenditure that has not been budgeted, an
expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from
another sphere of government, municipality or organ of state and an expenditure in
a form of a grant that is not permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management
Act (Act No. 56 of 2003). Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense
(measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure is an expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No. 32 of
2000), the Public Office Bearers Act, and (Act. No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention
of the Municipality’s Supply Chain Management Policy. Irregular expenditure
excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as
expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial
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1.32:

1.33.

Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could
have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure (measured at the actual cost incurred)
in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent
liability could also be a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recoghised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent Assets represent possible assets that arise from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by an occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not fully within the control of the municipality.

The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. A contingent asset is
disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring contingent
liabilities and contingent assets.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts
represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. The use of
available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of
estimates. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates, which may be
material to the annual financial statements. These estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that
management has made in the process of applying the municipality’s Accounting
Policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Annual Financial Statements:

Post-retirement medical obligations and Long service awards

The cost of post-retirement medical obligations and long service are determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions
about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Major assumptions used are disclosed
in note 12 of the Annual Financial Statements. Due to the long-term nature of these
plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Impairment of Receivables

The calculation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on an assessment
of the extent to which debtors have defaulted on payments already due, and an
assessment of their ability to make payments based on their creditworthiness. This
was performed per service-identifiable categories across all classes of debtors.

Impairment of Statutory Receivables

The calculation in respect of the impairment of Statutory Receivables is based on
an assessment of the expected recoverability of each individual receivable based
on the history of recoverability of such receivables. When insufficient information is
available to assess individual debtors, debtors are grouped into appropriate
aggregated grouping levels. Aggregation is based on best practice. Thereafter
receivables are assessed based on the historical information available.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management’s
estimation. Infrastructure’s useful lives are based on technical estimates of the
practical useful lives for the different infrastructure types, given engineering technical
knowledge of the infrastructure types and service requirements. For other assets
and buildings management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital
funding, service requirements and required return on assets to determine the
optimum useful life expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual
values of assets is also based on management’s judgement whether the assets will
be sold or used to the end of their useful lives, and in what condition they will be at
that time.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful
lives and residual values of Property, Plant and Equipment:

e The useful life of movable assets was determined using the age of similar assets
available for sale in the active market. Discussions with people within the specific
industry were also held to determine useful lives.
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o Local Government Industry Guides were used to assist with the deemed cost and
useful life of infrastructure assets.

o The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the
useful life of buildings. The Municipality also consulted with engineers to support
the useful life of buildings, with specific reference to the structural design of
buildings.

For deemed cost applied to other assets as per adoption of Directive 7, management
used the depreciated replacement cost method which was based on assumptions
about the remaining duration of the assets.

The cost for depreciated replacement cost was determined by using either one of
the following:

e Cost of items with a similar nature currently in the Municipality’s asset register;

e Cost of items with a similar nature in other municipalities’ asset registers, given
that the other municipality has the same geographical setting as the Municipality
and that the other municipality’s asset register is considered to be accurate;

e Cost as supplied by suppliers.

For deemed cost applied to land and buildings as per the adoption of Directive 7,
management made use of an independent valuator. The valuator’s valuation was
based on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the
remaining duration of the assets.

Intangible Assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are based on management's estimation.
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding,
service requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful
life expectation, where appropriate.

Reference was made to intangibles used within the Municipality and other
municipalities to determine the useful life of the assets.

For deemed cost applied to intangible assets as per the adoption of Directive 7,
management used the depreciation cost method which was based on assumptions
about the remaining duration of the assets.

Investment Property

The useful lives of investment property are based on management’s estimation.
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding,
service requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful
life expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is
also based on management’s judgement whether the assets will be sold or used to
the end of their economic lives, and in what condition they will be at that time.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful
lives and the valuation of investment property:
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e The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the
useful life of buildings.

e The Municipality also consulted with professional engineers and qualified
valuators to support the useful life of buildings.

For deemed cost applied to Investment Property as per the adoption of Directive 7,
management made use of an independent valuator. The valuator's valuation was
based on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the
remaining duration of the assets.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions
and when measuring contingent liabilities and contingent assets. Provisions are
discounted where the time value effect is material.

Provision for Landfill Sites

The provision for rehabilitation of the landfill site is recognised as and when
environmental liability arises. The provision is calculated by a qualified
environmental engineer. The provision represents the net present value of the
expected future cash flows to rehabilitate the landfill site at year-end. To the extent
that the obligations relate to an asset, it is capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Any subsequent changes to an obligation that did not relate to the initial
related asset are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding
provisions:

e Professional engineers were utilised to determine the cost of rehabilitation of
landfill sites as well as the remaining useful life of each specific landfill site.

e Interest rates linked to government bond rates were used to calculate the effect
of the time value of money.

Provision for Staff leave

Staff leave is accrued to employees according to collective agreements. Provision
is made for the full cost of accrued leave at the reporting date. This provision will be
realised as employees take leave or when employment is terminated.

Componentisation of Infrastructure assets

All infrastructure assets are unbundled into their significant components to
depreciate all major components over the expected useful lives. The cost of each
component is estimated based on the current market price of each component,
depreciated for age and condition and recalculated to cost at the acquisition date if
known or to the date of initially adopting the standards of GRAP.
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1.35.

1.36.

1.37.

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions and Accounting
Policy on Revenue from Exchange Transactions describes the conditions under
which revenue will be recognised by the management of the Municipality.

In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the
recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions
and GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions. Specifically, whether the
Municipality, when goods are sold, had transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods and when services are rendered, whether
the service has been performed. The management of the Municipality is satisfied
that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate.

TAXES - VALUE-ADDED TAX

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounts of value-added
tax. The net amount of Value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial
Position.

MATERIAL LOSSES

Material Losses represent distribution losses of electricity and water. The electricity
and water units lost are calculated by taking into account the units purchased and
sold during the year. Thereafter, the lost units are quantified by using the acquisition
price.

Distribution losses for electricity are only disclosed in the financial statements in
terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

Distribution losses for water are recognised and disclosed in the financial statements
in terms of the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) and the Municipal Finance
Management Act (56 of 2003).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments disclosed in the financial statements represent the balance
committed to capital projects on reporting date that will be incurred in the period
subsequent to the specific reporting date.

SEGMENT REPORTING
A segment is an activity of an entity:

e that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic
benefits or service potential relating to transactions between activities of the
same entity);

o whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to that activity and in assessing its performance; and

—— < Page 65 —



KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1.38.

o for which separate financial information is available

Management identifies reportable segments in accordance with the monthly section
71 report, which are regularly reviewed by management. Management reviews the
performance on an aggregated basis of total revenue and total expenditure.

The municipality manages its assets and liability as a whole and are not reviewed
on a segregated basis for each town. Segment reporting per geographical area is
not deemed relevant.

The measurement basis per the monthly reports is the same as the annual financial
statements.

The restatement of segment information is only done if there was a change in the
reportable structure of the municipality and information is readily available.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the reporting date and the date when the financial statements
are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

o those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date
(adjusting events after the reporting date); and

o those are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-
adjusting events after the reporting date).

If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material, the Municipality
discloses the nature and an estimate of the financial effect.
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Property, Plant and Equipment which Is in the process of being censtructed or developed:

Infrastructure Assels

Roads
Electricity

Water Supply
Sanitation
Community Assels
Total Property, Ptant and Equipment under construction

The movaments for the year can be reconciled as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Expendiure dusing the year
Conlributed PPE

Assets unbundled during the year

Batance at end of year

Property, Plant and Equipment that is taking a significanlly fonger peried of time to complete than expected;

infrastruclure Assels

Efectricity
Waler Supply
Sanitation

Communily Assels

Total

The project s taking longer than expacted due to reprioritisation of projects and insufficlent funds to compiete the project in current year,

Property, Plant and Equipment where construction or developiment has been haited:

Infrastructure Assals

Roads
Water Supply

Total
The project has been halted due o repricrilisation of projects and insufficient funds to complete the project in curent year.
Expenditure incurred fo repair and maintain Properly, Plant and Equipment:

Cther matenals
Contracted Services

Total Repairs and Maintenance

Assets pledged as security:
tegsed Propsy, Plant and Equipment of R3 325 §93 (2023: R3 602 847) is secured for leases as sal outin Nete 10,1,

Confractual commitments for acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Approved and contractad for {inclusive of VAT):

Infrastructure

Total

‘This expenditure will be financed frem:
Government Granis

Tuofal
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Net Carrying amount at £ July

Cost
Balance previousiy staled
Correction of Error - Note 35,2
Accumutated [mpaiment Loss

Disposat
Reversal of impainment foss

Net Carrying amount at 30 June

Cost
Accumutated Impairment Loss
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2024 2023
R R
13 981 443 42981 £15
517 358 517 358
21985 21995
12 206 709 2 206 709
1235 362 1235 352
42 351 692 42351892
26 333 105 26 333 105
26 433 105 20 881 715
- 5 454 290
26 333 105 26 333 105
4972962 4972 982
51095 21995
4223 426 4223426
727 542 727 542
11630 028 11630028
16 602 990 16 602 950
890272 880 272
517 958 517 358
372 914 272914
850 272 890 272
352 458 225 878
- 398 023
352 458 621 901
4524 207 19 455 860
2524 207 I i 49 455 850
9 524 207 18 455 B0
@524 207 19 455 850
8 524 207 19 455 850
31040 628 31 040 629
31 338 155 31336 455
51755 792
. 9641 663
(297 526) {357 38y
(372 000) .
262 716 3
20 951 346 31 040 629
0 866 155 31338 155
(+4 809) (297 626)
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2924 2022
R R

Revenue from Investment Property
Revenua derivad from Lhe rental of Investment Property 185 369 151 708
The municipality has no Invesiment Property which is in the process af being constructed or developed,
The municipality has no Investment Property that [s taking a significantly longer period of time to cormplets than axpected.
The municipalily has ne Investment Praperty whers construction or development has been halted.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Net Carrying amount at 1 July 218 855 257 628
Cost 484 241 484 211
Accumulated Amortisation {285 356} {226 583)
Additions 80 878 -
Amariisation {55 351} (38773}
Net Carrying amount at 30 June 224 379 218 868
Cost 545088 484214
Accumulaled Amorifsation {328 707) (265 356)
Mo intanglble asset were assed having an indefinile useful Ife.
There are no intemally generated intangible assets at reporting date.
Thete are no intangible asseis whose litle is restricled,
There age no intangible assels pledged as secuxily for Habilies.
There are no contractual commilments for the acquisition of intangible assets,
HERITAGE ASSETS
Wet Carrying amount at 1 July 5400 5400
Cost 5400 5 400
Accumuiated Impairment L.oss - -
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Net Carrying amount 2t 30 June 5400 5400
Cost 5400 5 400
Accumulated fmpairment Loss . .
Heritage assets consisis of 3 x shori magazine Lee Enfield (SMLE) MK3 Rifles.
There are no restriciions on the realisability of Heritage Assets or the remitiance of revenue and praceeds of disposal.
There are no contraclual obligations to purchase, construct or develop Heiilage Assels of for repairs, maintenance or enhancements,
There are no Heritage Assels pledged as securily for fiabilities
There are no Heritage Assats that are used by the municipality for mere than ane purpase.
INVENTORY
Consumabies 434 221 693 395
Waler 2333788 568 287

Balance previously reported 384 344

Correction of error - Note 36 3 173 942
Total Inventory 2768 009 1 26% 6§82
The municipaiity recogrised anly purification costs in respect of non-purchased purified water Inventory.
Inventories recognised as an expense during the year:
Consumables 1496 180 2953 270
Total 1486 150 2953 270

Mo inventories were pledged as security for liabiliies.
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY
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2024 2023
R R
7. RECE{VABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Electricity G998 423 10 133 385

Balance previously reporied - 12 788 617

Correction of error - Nole 36 4 - {2 655 232)
Waler 36 196 919 34316 777
Waste Management 47 012 861 15691 609

Balance previsusiy reported 154682 518

Caorrection of erer - Note 36.4 {1510)
Waste Water Management 9 543 076 8704 512

Balance previously reported 8 705 862

Correclion of error - Note 36.4 {1351
Othar Amears 22 164 897 20 407 638
Total: Receivables frem exchange transactions {before provision) 94914 275 £9 253 318
tess: Provision for Debt Impaiment {84 331 255) {80 802 425}
Total: Receivabies from exchange fransactions {after provision) 10 583 020 8 650 883
Consumer debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit period granted is considered to be consfstent wilh the lerms used in he public
sastor, through established practices and legislation, Discounting of consumer debloers are nol padonmad in lerms of GRAP 104 on Mitlal
recognition.
The fair vaiue of receivabigs approximate thelr carrying vaiue.
(Electricity); Ageing
Curtrent {¢ - 30 days) 380 750 288 512
31- 80 Days 450 188 199 g
£1-90 Days 281783 173 290
+90 Days 5 863 890 9 472 485
Total 9996 423 10133 385
{Water): Ageing
Current {0 - 30 days) 494 630 421252
31-60 Days : 662 125 399 232
61- 90 Days 437 978 376 840
+ 80 Days 34602 186 33 120 452
Totai 35 196 818 I N6 77T
{Waste Management): Ageing
Current {0 - 30 days} 252 422 232 405
31 - 60 Days 241 BG5 221 858
61-90 Days 233086 216 808
+ 90 Days 16 284 878 156 018 938
Totai 7012981 15691 008
OWaste Waler Management): Ageing
Current (0 - 30 days} 200 454 186 366
31-80 Days 1768 858 168 995
61- 90 Days 166 374 161650
+ 80 Days 8967 390 B 187 501
Total & 543 078 8704 512
{Cther): Ageing
Current (€ - 30 days) 174 760 163 853
31-80 Days 200 698 198 227
671 - 90 Days 172 888 162 278
+ 40 Days 218607 530 19 883 278
Total 22 184 BSG 20 407 635
{Total): Ageing
Cusrent (¢ - 30 days) 1503 036 1292 388
31-80 Days 1742 544 1 187 400
G§1 - 90 Days 1293 021 1089 866
+ 90 Days 90 375 674 85 683 664
Totat o4 914 275 89 253 318
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2024 2023
R R
Reconciliation of Proyision for Dabt Impairment
Balance at beginning of year BO 602 435 70439758
Previously stated 76 967 491
Carrection of Efrar - Nole 38.4 {B 527 734}
Conlribution 1o provision 3242 453 9 116 812
Previously staled 6871 770
Correction of Error - Note 36.4 2 145 142
VAT an provisian 486 368 1045 766
Balance al and of year B4 331 255 80 BO2 435
Ageing of amounis past due but not impalred:
1 month past due i 742 544 1187 400
2+ months past dus 7 337 440 6171085
9 079 984 7368 485
8. RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Taxes - Rates 72 993 893 63 845 035
Balance previously reported 63 852 868
Correction of error - Note 36.5 {7 833}
Other Receivables 499 275 499 652
h 73493 168 64 344 687
Less: Provision for Debt Impairment {87 417 432) {59 868 299}
Total Receivables from non-exchange transactions 6 075 736 4 476 388
The fair value of other raceivables approximate thelr canying value,
Rates debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit period granted is considered to be consistert with the terms used in the public sector,
thraugh established practices and legisiation. Discolmting of rates debtors are nol perormisd in torms of GRAP 104 on initial recognition.
[Rafes); Agelng
Current (0 - 30 days) 1687 726 884 302
31 - 80 Days 998 789 914 695
61- 30 Days 841 164 881 151
+ 80 Days 69 856 205 61 064 886
Total 72993 894 83 845 035
Recengciliation of Provisien for Debt impairment
Balance at baginning of year 59 868 299 46 853 187
Balance previously reported 50 168 080
Correction of arror - Note 36 8 (3315 913)
Contrbution to provision 7545133 13015132
Ralance previously reported 13185 791
Cosrection of error - Note 36.5 {176 659)
Balance at end of year 67 417 432 5% 868 289
Ageing of amounts past due but not impaired:
1 moenth past dug 998 789 914 695
2+ months past due 3479 837 2077 738
4476 738 2992 434
L BANK ACCOUNTS
Cash and Cash Equivaients
Current Accounis 17 838 {58 245}
Cali Depasits and investments 820 584 909 460
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - Assets 838 521 851 215
The municipality has the following coliateral, contingent balances and guarantees on bank accaunts:
Goilateral legal entity - Kamiesberg Local Municipality:
Type Face value Cate signed
Cession & Pledge of Credit Balances R 151 734 2010/08/20
Cession & Pledge of Cradit Balances R 32678
R 184 412
Conlingen! batances - Kamiesberg Local Municipality:
Type Fzce value
Contingent balance R 184 412
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2624 2023

R R
The municipality has the foliowing bank accounis:
Current Accounts
First National Bank - Account Number 520 2250 1448 (Pdmary Bank Account): 47 838 (58 245)

17 938 (58 245}

Cali Deposits 2nd investments
Firsl National Bank - Account Number $2012466018: 46 17 347
First National Bank - Account Number 62182761728: - 408 497
First National Bank - Accounl Number 82117682791 7728 8494
First National Bank - Account Number 74282298369: 379 115 3rg 128
First National Bank - Accotnt Number 71053360915 203 218 88 303
First National Banic - Account Number 71059354764: 225222 208 691
First National Bank - Account Number 63059258002 5255 -

820 584 909 460
Delaits of current account is as follow:
First National Bank - Account Number 620 2250 1440 (Primary Bank Aceount):
Cash back batance at beginning of year {58 245) 4043 488
Cash book batance at end of year 17 938 (68 245)
RBank statement batance at beginaing of year 372373 250 269
Bank statameni balance at end of year 318859 372373
Delails of caltinvestment accounts are as follow:
First National Bank - Account Number §2012466018:
Cash book talance at beginning of year 17 347 5421
Cash book balance at end of year 46 17 347
Bank stalement balance at beginning of year 17 347 5421
Bank staterent balance al end of year 46 17 347
First National Bank - Account Number 62182751729:
Cash book balance at beginning of year 108 497 3096 680
Cash book balance at end of year - 108 487
Bank stalement balance at beginning of year 1688 467 30896 860
Bank statement balance at end of year - 108 487
First National Bank - Account Number 62117682781:
Cash book bafance at beginning of year g 484 8221
Cash book batance at end of year 7729 § 494
Bank statement bafence at beginning of year 84384 8221
Bank statement bafance at end of year 7728 8 494
First Natlonal Bank - Account Number 74282298369:
Cash boaok balance at beginning of year arg 128 354 027
Cash book balance at end of year 379 115 378 128
Bank statement baiance at beginning of year a7g 128 354 027
Bank statement balance at end of year 407 479 37 128
First Nationa! Bank - Account Number 71053360915
Cash book balance al baginning of year 188 303 177 708
{Cash book balance at end of year 203218 188 302
flank staternent balance al beginning of year 188 303 177 708
Bank statement balance at end of year 2063218 188 303
Firsi National Bank - Account Number 71059354764:
Cash book balance at beginning of year 208 662 197 447
Cash book balance at end of yaar 225222 208 692
Bank staternent balance a1 beginning of year 208 682 197 447
Bank statement balance at end of year 2256 222 208 692
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

£ ONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Capitatised Lease Liability - At amorlised cost

Less: Current Partion transferred to Cument Ulabitities
Teotal Long-term Borrowings

The obligations under finance jeases are scheduled befow:

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Payable within one year
Payable within two lo five years
Payable after ive years

iess; Future finance obfigations

Present value of finance fease obligations

The capitalised iease liability consist out of the following contracts:

Effective interest

Supplier Deseription of leased item rate
Nashuz Mobile Laptops & Madems 10%
Nashua Fax machines and Copiers 14%
Bidvest Vehicles 10%

Refer lo Appendix A for descriptions, malurity dates and effective interest rates of structured joans and finance.

Finance Leases are secured by property, planl and equipment - Note 2.
NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for Rehabifilation of Landfil-sites

Total Nan-current Previsions
LandfIll Sites

Balance 1 July

Previously stated

Coirection of Emor - Note 36.5
Contribution for the year

Previcusly stated

Comection of Error - Note 36.6
Increase/{Decreasa} due to discounting

Previously stated

Corsrection of Error - Note 36.8

Totai provision 30 June
Less; Transfer of Current Portion lo Current Provisions

Halance 30 June

Annual
Escalation

0%
0%
0%

The prevision for rehabiiitation of the landfill site is recagnised as and when the environmental liability arises. The provision is calculated by a

qualified envirenmental engineer.

The future obligations for rehabilitating the landfill sites have bean calculated using a discaunt rate between 7,4% - 11,64% depending on the

remaining Useful life of the tandfil-sites.

The estimated rehabilitation costs for each of lhe existing siles are based on the current rétes for construction costs. The assumptions used

are as follows:

Rehabilitation area (m?)

Pretiminary and General

Site Clearance and Preparation

Stormwaler Control Measures

Gapping

Leachate Management

Fencing

Environmenta! Aulhorisation (Closure License)

Technical ROD

Install Groundwater Monitaring Boreholes with lackable caps (inciudas drlling cantractor sile
establishment)

Landscape Architacls

Topugraphical Survey

Contingencies

£ngineering Professsional Feas

Site Supervision (Engineer's Representative)

Site Supervision (Enviranmantal Control Officer&GHS Agent)
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Hondeklip Bay

5788
815839
8624
610 306
2118578
291 488
766 807
460 688
232 958

146 069
1685762

+4 505
440 562
581062
228 173
180 300

2024 2023
R R
355 395 2313310
355 395 2313310
- (1 618 $94)
355 398 594 397
Minimum
payments
722291 1772778
- 721701
722201 2 494 479
(366 896) {181 169)
355 395 2313 316
Lease Term Maturity Date
2 Years 30/06/2024
5 Years 30/08/2024
3 Years 30/04/2025
40 770 181 34132731
48 770 181 34132741
34 132 731 33 423 079
34132731
{709 853}
3585778 10633 326
2 607 654
{1 574 328)
3081871 (323 874)
4 470 153
3 B46 479
40 770 181 34132734
40 770 181 34132731
Kiipfontein Soebatsfontein
2070 7148
224 314 586 454
3084 10 648
agd 270 693 951
785 181 2871772
194 085 318 801
13777 13777
460 688 460 688
232 968 232 968
226 808 235 554
165 149 164 635
7 850 7950
160 471 418 540
243 577 563 313
203 276 282 145
151 389 186 120



KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2024

Rehabililation area {m?®)

Preliminary and General

Site Clearance and Preparation

Stormwater Cenirol Measures

Capping

Laachate Management

Fencing

Environmental Authorisation {Closure License)
Technical ROD

Install Groundwater Moniloring Boreheles with lockable caps {includes drilfing conlracter she

establishment)

L andscape Archilects

Topographical Survey

Cordingendcies

£ngineering Professsional Fees

Site Supervision (Engineer's Representative)

Site Supervision {Environmental Control Officer&0HS Agent)

Rehabilitation area (m?)

Preliminary and General

Site Clearance and Preparation

Stormwater Conlrel Measures

Capping

t.eachale Management

Fencing

Environmental Authoiisation (Closure License)
Technical ROD

Install Groundwater Moniloring Boreholes with fockabie caps {inciudes drlling contractor site

eslablishment)

Landscape Architects

Topographical Survey

Conlingencies

Engineening Professsional Fees

Site Supervision (Engineer's Representative}

Site Supervision (Environmental Contrel Officer&OHS Agent)

Rehabilitation area im?}

Preliminary and General

Sile Clearance and Preparation

Starmwater Conlrol Measures

Capping

i sachate Management

Fencing

Enviranmental Authadsalion {Closwre Licensa)
Technical RGD

{nstalt Grouncwater Monitering Boreholes with fockable caps (includes drifling contractor site

Landscape Architacts

Topographical Survey

Contingencles

Engineering Professsional Fees

Site Supervision {Engineer's Representative)

Site Supenvision {Environmental Controf Officer&OHS Agent)

l.eliefontein

1022
143 631
1623
315 590
403 329
149 865
18777
460 658
232 968
139 748
164 284
7850
102 752
148 340
193 478
138 044

Garies

o611
821 555
14 320
10065 333
3641 133
381159
13777
480 588
222 9868

161 269
165 117

7950
587 128
785 321
286 214
184 349

Twearivier

2718
282 283
4045
484 815
994 155
240 213
1377
450 688
232988

188 131
164 866

¥ 950
201827
276 063
200 070
146 367

Roo#oniein!
Kamassies

z2o1e
306 185
4336
508 187
4 070 589
250 463
13777
480 688
232 968
267 980
163 687
7950
214 785
292 986
186 708
125 442

The municipality has an ebligation lo rehabilitate landfill sites at the end of the expected usefull fife of the assel. The eslimate cost, based on
an average inflation rate of 5,02%, and -date of decommission of the sites are as fallows:

Location

Hondekiip Bay
Kolingnaas
Klipfonlein
Soehatsfoniein
Garles
Tweerivier
Kharkams
Spoegrivier
Motirivier
Lefiefonteain
Racifontein/ Kamassiss
Pauishaek
Kamieskroon
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Estimated
decommission
date

2027
2028
2029
2050
2022
2038
20632
2029
2027
2031
2039
2032
2044

Spoagrivier Nourivier
1648 177
201 797 203 227
2451 2638
408 694 378 057
823673 643 630
183 231 191 522
13777 13777
460 688 480 608
232 968 232 968
168 885 204 365
164 913 163 970
7950 7950
144 362 145 385
216 898 218 686
200 804 1689 914
147 204 130 464
Kharkams Koiingnaas
2115 5084
267 431 500 504
31561 7575
564 768 694 304
799 047 2029038
264 985 335 885
13777 13777
460 688 450 688
232 958 232 968
166 367 238788
164 681 185117
7 950 14 565
191 316 358 117
262 057 482 235
197 753 220 010
142 740 167 530
Paulsheoek Kamieskroon
685 11 680
117 613 1024 238
1021 16 509
291 451 845 102
283 232 4218643
134 289 402 514
18777 819 237
460 658 460 688
232 968 232 968
170 558 169 895
164 315 164 378
7950 15085
84 138 732724
117628 976 716
193 834 276 363
1346 602 168 322
2024 2023
R R
7952 457 7572327
7202728 6 858 435
4 416 281 4 265140
23934 803 22790785
12 945 937 12 327 116
7758 821 7 387 946
5533604 5 289 085
4§74 199 3 879 450
3715893 3 538 367
3482 737 3506 701
5777822 5 501 639
3586 187 3386722
28 030 881 26 891 003
118 592 560 112 923 7886
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NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
R R
NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Provision for Post Retirement Health Care Banefits 2581 000 2677 000
Provision for Long Service Awards 1251 00¢ 1239 800
Total Norn-current Employee Benefits 3832000 3 816 009
FPost Ratirement Health Care Benefils
Balance 1 July 2715000 2 508 006
Conleibution for the year 504 000 495 408
Expenditure for the year (38 000) {36 8040}
Acluarial Gain {539 0G0) (249 600}
Total provision 30 June 2 642 000 2715 00C
Less: Transfer of Cuirent Portion to Carrent Provisions - Note 14 {81 060) {38 000}
Balance 30 Jung 2681 000 2 677 000
Long Service Awards
Aafance 1 .July 1 482 609 1 639 600
Contibulien for the year 289 006 280 000
£xpenditure for the year {243 000} (177 060)
Actuarial Gain (23 000} {179 000}
Total provision 306 June 4 505 000 1 482 000
tess: Transfer of Cument Parfion to Curent Provistons - Naote 14 {254 000} (243 000}
Balance 30 Jung 1 281 000 1233000
Provision for Post Retirement Heaith Care Benefits
The Pos! Retirement Health Care Benefit Pian is a defined beneRil pfan, of which the members are made up as follows:
In-service (employee) members 22 22
In-service {employes) non-members &5 85
Conlinuation members (e.g. Retirees, widows, orphans) 1 1
Total Members 88 88
2024 2023
R R
The liabilily in respect of past service has been estimated {o be as follows:
In-service members 4335 000 1387 000
In-service not-members 4 064 000 1478 000
Canlinuation members 243 008 240 600
Total Liability 2642000 2715000
The liability in respact of periods commencing prior to the comparalive year has been estimated as follows:
2022 202% 2020
R R R
in-service members 1 292 060 1 445 400 466 000
in-service nan-members 943 000 847 000 586 000
Centinualion members 250 000 355 000 296 000
Total Liahility 2506 000 2 647 000 1848 000
The municipality makes manthly contribulions for health care arrangements to the following medical aid schemes:
LA Haalth
The Cument-sarvice Cost for the ensuing year is estimated to be R188 000, whereas (he [nterest Cost for the next year is eslimated to be
R323 000,.
2024 2023
Key actuarial assumptions used: % %o
i} Rate af interast
Discount rate 12,35% 12 57%
Health Care Cosl [nflation Rate 6,32% B8,17%
Met Effective Discount Rate 4,20% 4,07%

i} Mortality rates
The PA 90 uitimate table, rated down by 1 year of age was used by the acluaries.

The Pensioner Annuitant {80 or "PA(30)" lables are a set of monality tables based on UK fife insurance office pensioners during the
period 1967-70. These mortality rates were then projecled to estimate muartality rates appiicable in 1890,
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liiy Normal retirernent age
The normal ratirement age for emplayees of the municipality is 62 years,
iv] Expested rate of salary increases

Parties are still Busy with nagoliations of safary increases, The expected rate of salary incresse is CPL

2D24 2023
R R

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Pasition are as follows:
Present vaiue of fund obligations 2 642 000 2 715 00¢
Fair value of plan assets - .

2642 008 2715060
Unrecognised past service cost - -
Unrecagnised actuarial gains/{fosses) - .
Presanl Value of unfunded obligations - .
Net liability/(assef} 2642000 2715 000
Reconcitiation of present vakue of fund obligation:
Prasent value of fund obligalion al the beginning of the year 2715000 2 505 600
Total expenses 504 000 485 Q00
Curent service cost 165 000 200 000
Interest Cost 339 400 285 000
Remeasurement of net defined benafit liability {539 000) {249 000}

Return on plan assets {exct Interast) -
Actuarial (gains)losses fram demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gains¥lasses from financial assumplions {538 000) (249 800}
Changes in effect of limiting -

Past service cost "
Gains and josses from setifement -
Effect of change in foreign exchange rates -
Contributions to ptan from employer -
Centibutions to ptan from employee N -
Bensfits Paid {38 0o} £36 000}

£ffect of transfers of functions, mergers and disposafs - -

Present value of fund obligation at the end of the year 2642 00Q 2715000

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets al the beginning of the year - -
Expected return on plan assats -
Condribution: Employer -
Contributfon: Empioyes

Past service cosis

Actuarial {gains)esses -
Benefits Paid - -

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year N

Sensitivity Analysis on the Accrued Liability on 3¢ June 2024

In-service Lontindanon
members members liability Total liability
tiabifity (R} {Rm) (Rm)

Assumption
Central Assumptions 2,399 0,243 2,842
The effect of movements in the assumptions are as follows!

n-sarvice copunuaton

members members fabiity Total liability

Ghange liabHity (Rm) {Rm) (Rm} % change

Assumption
Medicai aid contribution inflation rate +1% 2547 0,255 2,802 6%
Health care inflation -1% 2192 0,232 2,424 -8%
Discount rate +H1% 2,081 0,233 2,284 -14%
Discount rate -1% 2,835 0,254 3,086 17%
Posl-refirement modality +1 year 2,342 0,231 2,573 -3%
Post-retirement mortaiily -1 year 2,456 0,255 271 3%
Average relirement age -1 year 2,707 3,243 2,950 12%
Wilhgrawat Rate -10% 2,08 3,243 2323 -12%
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Sensitivity Analysis on Current-Service and Interest Cost for the year ending 30 June 2025

Assumption
Central Assumptions

The effect of movements in the assumptions are as fallows:

Assumption

Medical aid contribution inflation rate
Medical aid contribution inflation rate
Discount rate

Discount rate

Post-relirement mortality
Post-retirement mortality

Average retirement age

Withdrawal Rate

Experience adjustments were calculated as follows:

Liabilities: (Gain) / loss
Assets: Gain / (loss)

Change

+1%
-1%
+1%
-1%
+1%
-1%
-1 year
-10%

Current Service
Cost (R)

188 000

Current Service
Cost (R)

198 000
173 000
161 000
223 000
184 000
183 000
172 000
163 000

The adjustments in respect of periods commencing prior to the comparative year has been estimated as follows:

Liabilities: (Gain) / lass
Assets: Gain / (loss)

Material analysis

The following figure shows the maturity analysis (undiscounted expected benefit payments for the next 80 years in R'million.

Expected Expected Expected
Future Year | Benefit Future Year | Benefit Future Year | Benefit
Payments Payments Payments
1 0.061 6to 10 1.327 31 to 40 33.684
2 0.076 11t0 15 2.867 41 to 60 31.228
3 0.080 16 to 20 5.524 5110 60 17.958
4 0.105 21 to 25 10.173 611070 5.793
5 0.147 26 to 30 13.152 71 to 80 0.836

Provision for Long Service Bonuses

The Long Service Bonus plans are defined benefit plans. As at year end, 87 employees were eligible for Long Service Bonuses.

The Current-service Cost for the ensuing year is estimated to be R136 000 whereas the Interest Cost for the next year is estimated to be

R138 000.

Key actuarial assumptions used:
i) Rate of interest

Discount rate
General Salary Inflation (long-term)

Net Effective Discount Rate applied to salary-related Long Service Bonuses

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:

Present value of fund obligalions
Fair value of plan assets

Unrecognised past service cost
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses)
Present value of unfunded obligations

Net liability/{asset)
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Interest Cost (R) Total (R)
323 000 511 000
Interest Cost (R) Total (R) % change
342 o000 541 000 6%
296 000 469 000 -8%
301 000 462 000 -10%
347 000 570 000 12%
314 000 498 000 -3%
331 000 524 000 3%
361 000 533 000 4%
283 000 446 000 -13%
2024 2023
R R
(539 000) (249 000)
2022 2021 2020
R R R
(547 000) (216 000) (226 000)
2024 2023
% %
11,13% 11,20%
5,28% 6,52%
4,57% 4,39%
1506 000 1482 000
1505 000 1 482 000
1 505 000 1482 000




KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
R R
Reconciliation of present value of fund obligation:
Present value of fund obligation at the beginning of the year 1482 000 1539000
Tutal expenses 28% G630 269 400
Cuirent service cos! 136 G600 140 600
fnterest Cost 153 600 459 600
Remeasuremant of net defined benefit liability {23 060} (179.960)
Refurn on ptan assels (excl interest) - -
Acluariat {galns)fasses from demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial {pains)losses from financiat assumptions {23 000} (179 000}
Changes in effect of limiting - -
Pas! service cost - -
Gains and losses from settlement -
Effect of change in foreign exchange rales - -
Cantributions to plan from emptoyer - _
Conlibutions to plan from employes - -
Benefits Paid {243 000} {177 G00)
Effect of transfers of funclions, mergers and disposals - -
Present value of fuhd cbligabion at the end of the year 1 505 000 1 482 000
Recongiliatien of fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginaing of the year - -
Expected retlm on plan assels - -
Contribution: Employer - -
Conkribution: Employes - -
Past service costs - -
Actuarial (geins)Tosses - -
Benelits paid - -
Fair value of pian assets al the end of the year - -
Sensitivity Analysis on the Accrued Liability on 30 June 2024
Change Liability {Rm) % change
Assumption
Cenlrat assumptions 4 505 Q00
General eamnings inflation rate +1% 1 587 080 5%
Genarat earnings inflation rate -1% 430 000 -5%
Discount rate 1% 1428 000 5%
Discount rate -1% 1 590 000 8%
Average retirement age +2 yrs 1433 500 9%
Average refirement age -2 yrs 1415 0600 -6%
Withdrawal rales X2 1231000 -18%
Withdrawal rates %086 1680 Q00 12%
Senstivity Analysis on Current-Service and Interest Cost for the yaar ending 36 June 2025
Current Service
Cost{R) Interest Cost (R) Total {R}
Assumplion
Central Assumplions 138 000 154 000 292 000
The effect of movements in the assumptions are as follows:
Current Service
Change Cost (R} interest Cost (R} Total (R) % change
Assumption
General earnings inflation rale +i% 148 000 163 006 311000 7%
General eamings nfiation rate -1% 128 000 145 000 274 006 -6%
Discount rale +1% 130 000 158 000 288 000 -1%
Discount rate -1% 147 008 149 000 286 600 1%
Average retirement aga +2 yis 156G 00¢ 168 000 318 000 9%
Average retirement age -2 yrs. 130 008 144 0G0 274 000 -6%
Withdrawal Rate x2 101 Q00 123 080 224 Q00 -23%
Withdrawai Rate %05 165 060 174 060 338 000 7%
2024 2823
R R
Experience adjustments were calculated as follows:
Liabililies: (Gain} / loss {243 000} {179 000}

Assets: Gain f (loss) -
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The liability in respect of periods commencing prior to the comparative year has been estimated as follows:
2022
R

Liabilities: (Gain) / loss (20 000)
Assets: Gain / {loss) -

Maturity analysis

The following figure shows the DBO's maturily analysis (undiscounted expected benefits vesting) for the next 40 years in R'million.

AT Benf?lg:c\:;::ﬁng EuRite Xenr Ban?f(l'l):‘\:l'::ﬂng
1 0.254 6to 10 1.643
2 0.160 1110 15 1.662
3 0.166 16 to 20 1.685
4 0.270 21to 30 1.647
5 0.358 31 to 40 0.216

Retirement funds

The Municipality requested detailed employee and pensioner information as well as information on the Municipality's share of the Pension and
Retirement Funds’ assets from the fund administrator. The fund administrator confirmed that assets of the Pension and Retirement Funds are
nol split per participating employer. Therefore, the Municipality is unable to determine the value of the plan assets as defined in GRAP 25.

As part of the Municipality's process to value the defined benefit liabilities, the Municipality requested pensioner data from the fund
administrator. The fund administrator claim that the pensioner data to be confidential and were not willing to share the information with the
Municipality. Without detailed pensioner data the Municipality was unable lo calculate a reliable estimate of the accrued liability in respect of
pensioners who qualify for a defined benefit pension.

Therefore, although the Cape Joint Retirement Fund is a Multi Employer fund defined as defined benefit plan, it will be accounted for as
defined contribution plan. All the required disclosure has been made as defined in GRAP 25.31.

CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT FUND (PREVIOUSLY CAPE JOINT RETIREMENT FUND)

The contribution rate paid by the members (8,0%) and Council (18,0%). The last acluarial valuation performed for the year ended 30 June
2023 revealed that the fund is in a sound financial position with a funding level of 120.1% (30 June 2022 - 131,5%).

Contributions paid recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION FUNDS

Council contribute to the National Municipal Workers Fund and SAMWU National Provident Fund which are defined contribution funds. The
retirement benefit fund is subject to the Pension Fund Act, 1956, with pension being calculated on the pensionable remuneration paid,
Current conltributions by Council are charged against expenditure on the basis of current service costs.

Contributions paid recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance

Mational Municipal Workers Fund
SAMWU National Provident Fund

Expected contributions for the next period

National Municipal Workers Fund
SAMWU National Provident Fund

CONSUMER DEPOSITS

Water and Electricity

Total Consumer Deposits

The fair value of cansumer deposits approximate their carrying value. Inlerest is not paid on these amounts.
CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Staff Bonuses
Staff Leave
Current Partion of Non-Current Provisions

Current Portion of Post Retirement Benefits - Note 12
Current Portion of Long-Service Awards - Note 12

Total Provisions
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2021 2020
R R
(29 987) (30 868)
2024 2023
R R
2124623 1957 281
118 064 110 764
667 885 708 963
785 949 819 728
118 064 118 064
811000 867 885
729 065 785 949
1575 473 1653 571
1575473 1553 571
720 446 672 465
2133719 1887 019
315000 281 000
81000 38 000
254 000 243 000
3169 165 2 840 485
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Staff Bonuses

Balance al beginning of year
Contribution to current portion
Expenditure incurred

Balance at end of year
Bonuses ara being paid to all municipal stafl, exciuding section 57 employees. The balance al year and represent lhe pertion of the bonus
that have aiready vested for the current salary cycle. There is no possibiiity of reimbursement,

Staff Leave

Bafance at beginning of year
Contribution te current portion
Expendilure incuired

Satance at end of year

Slalf feave accrued to employees according to collective agreement. Provision is made for the tull cast of accrued leave at reperting dale.
This provision will be realised as employees take leave. There is no possibility of reimbursement,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade Payables

Halance previously reporied
Cosrection of Error - Note 38.7

Actrued Interest

Advance Payments

Controk, Clearing and Interface Accounts
Retentions

Total Trade Payables
Payablas are being recognised nel of any distounts,

The camying value of trade and other payables approximates ils fafr value.
Alt payables are unsecured.

UNSPENT TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

Unspent Transfers and Subsidies

National Government Grants
Provincial Governmen! Grants
District Municipality

Other Sources

Less: Unpaid Transfers and Subsidies

National Government Grants
Provincial Government Grants
District Municipality

Other Sources

Tota! Unspent Transfers and Subsidies

See appendix "I for reconciliation of grants from other spheres of government. Tha municipaltty complied with the conditions atlached to all
grants recaived to the extent of revenue recogaised.

The Unspent Grants are not cash-backed by shor-term deposits or the primary bank account of the municipality. This results in nen-
compliance with the MFMA and the DORA.

The municipality complied wilh the conditions altached to all grants recsived lo the extent of revenue recogrised.
No grants were delayed or withheld.

tnspenl granls can mainly be allibutad to projects that are work 11 progress on the relevant financial year-ends.
TAXES

VAT Payable

VAT Qutput in Suspense

Balance previeusly reported
Correction of Eeror - Note 36.5

Tetal VAT Payable

VAT Receivable
VAT Input in Suspense

Total VAT Receivable
Nef VAT (Payable)iReceivable

VAT is payable an the receipls basis, VAT is paid aver ta SARS only once payment is received from deblors.
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2024 2023
R E

672 465 698 318
1254 571 1268 836
{4 208 500) (1314 689)
720 448 672 465
1887 619 1892 572
481 097 245 176
(234 387) (250 728}
2433718 1887 018
114 848 385 89 856 925
114 848 385 9 330 178
536 748

1777223 1571 591

2 8467 827 3 404 380
1186 373 1 486 373
120 709 430 96 $19 269
1308 532 5035 004
523 540 4220011
727 954 727 951

57 041 a7 041

¥ 308 532 % 035 604
(478 878) (478 878)
11 744 4033 (11 333 266)

{14 752 458)
399 181

{12 223 281}

(11812 144)

4 054 548 2831845
27 239 485 25 383 777
31 304 043 28 315 422
19080 762 16 503 278




KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY
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2024 2021
R R
18, PROPERTY RATES

Actual
Rateable Land and Buildings 14 205 33¢ 16 263 474

Previously slated 16 271 307

Carrection of Errar - Note 36.10 (7 833)
Less; Revenue Forgone (3963 311 (3833787)
Total Property Ratas 10 242 020 12 429 688
Valuations - 1 July 2023
Rateable Land and Buiidings 16 980 062 16 323 054
Business and Commercial Praperly 1893 457 1865 040
Farm Propedies 809 392 814 650
industrial Propedy 82 196 -
Mining Properties 2 060 148 2087 748
Municipal Properties Y96 088
Prolectad Areas 68 712 -
Public Benefit Organisations 15267114 1444 178
Public Sarvice Infrastruclure Properiies 484 058 _
Residential Properiies 5799 087 5616 840
State Trust Land 3466213 4 494 608
Less: Revenue Forgone (4 887 B42} {3833 787)
Total Assessment Rates . 12 092 229 12 489 267
Assessment Rates are levied on the value of fand and improvements, which valualion is performed every 4 years. The last valualion came
inte effect on 1 July 2019, Inlefm valuations are processed on an annual basis to lake inlo accourt changes In individual property values due
to sfterations and subdivisions and also to accommodate growth in the rate base due mostly lo private development.
Basic Rate
Residential 1.80931¢/R 1.81321¢/R
Commerctal 2.86397c/R 2.71982¢R
Agricuitural 0.67383c/R 0.67020cR
Slate 4.773280R 4.53303¢/R
\ndustdal 2.86398w/R 2719820
Minlag 4,77328cR 4 B3303c/R
Mullipurpose - .
Rates are levied annually and monthly. Monthly rates are payable by the 25th of Ihe foilewing month and annuzi rates are payabie bafora 30
September. interest is levied al a rate determined by the council on oulstanding rates amaunts,
Rebates were granled on land with butidings used solsly for dwellings purposes as follows:
Residendal - The first R15 000 on the valuation is exempled.
Public Benefit Organisations - 100%
State - 30%
Places of worship - 100%
Rebatss can be defined as any Incoms that the Municipality is entlled by taw to fevy, but which has subsequently been forgane by way of
rebale of remission.

2024 2023
R R
19. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

Government Granis and Subsidies - Operating 36 238 171 35 527 568
Equitabie Share 32 230 263 30 607 101
Expanded Public Works Programme Integraled Grant 564 908 820 467
t ocal Govemment Financial Management Grant 3100 000 3 100 000
Libraties, Archives and Museums 1043000 1 000 00D
Government Grants and Subsidies - Capilat 7122 034 6 355 003
Miunicipal Infrastructure Grant 7122 034 4 364 513
Department Water Aftairs and Environmeni {DWAF) - 1890 49¢
Total Government Grants and Subsidies 44 060 205 41 882 574
Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received:
Unconditional 32230263 36807 191

Equitable Share 37 230 263 ] I 30607 101
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Conditional

t ocal Government Financial Management Grant
Librafies, Archives and Museums

Expanded Public Works Programme [ntegrated Grant
Municipal Infrastruclure Grant

Department Water Affairs and Environment (8WAF)
Mamakwa DM

Total Government Grants and Subsidies

Revenue recognised per vole as required by Section 123 (¢} of the MFMA:
Equitabla share

Finance and Admirislration
Cemmunily and Social Services
Planning and Davelepment
Water Management

Total Government Grants and Subsidies

Equitable Share

DOpening balance

Granls receivad
Conditions met - Operating
Conditions met - Capilal

Conditions still to be met

The Equileble Share is the uncondilional share of the revenue raised nationally ang is being allocated in terms of Section 214 of lhe
Constitution {Act 108 of 1986) te the municipality by the National Treastry.

Local Gevernment Financial Management Grant (FMG}

Opening bafance

Grants received
Conditions met - Operating
Conditions met - Capital

Conditions stilt to be met
The Financial Management Grant is paid by National Treasury lo municipalities to help implement the financial reforms required by the

Municipal Einance Management Act {MFMA), 2003. The FMG Grant alsa pays for the cost of lhe Financial Management Internshlp
Programme (2.¢. salary costs of the Financial Management interns},

Municipal Infrastructure Grant (IMiG)

Cpening balance

Grants received

Repaid to Nalienal Revenue Fund
Condiions me! - Capitai

Conditions stil lo be met

The Municipal Infrastructure Grant was used o upgrade Infrastruciure In previously disadvantaged areas.

Expanded Public Works Programme {EPWP)

Opening balance

Grants recelved

Repaid to National Revenue Fund
Conditions met - Operating
Conditions met - Capilat

Conditions still to be met

The grant was used for job creation.

Depariment Waier Affairs and Environment {DWAF]

Opening batance

Grants recaived

Repaid to National Revenue Fund
Conditions met - Operaling
Conditions met - Capital

Conditions sti ta be mel

The grant was vsed for the refurbishment of water infrastructure.
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2024 2023
R R
11829 943 11 427 238
3 100 000 3 100 000
1043 000 1000 000
564 808 820 467
7422034 4364513
. + 090 450
- 151 759
44 050 205 42034 338
32 230 262 30607 101
10222 034 7 454 513
1043 000 1 400 000
564 908 820 467
. 1990 490
44 060 205 41 882 671
28 092 00D 30 607 101
(28 092 000} (30 607 101)
3100 000 3400 000
(3 100 000) {3 100 000)
3 580 969 2115618
7 545 000 7 945 000
(3 580 487) (2 415 136}
(7 122 634) (4 364 513}
423 447 3 580 988
120 533 391 814
665 000 950 600
(131 004) (249 082)
{563 437) (963 200)
100 082 129 533
509 509 2 175 156
. 2 500 008
(50% 508) (2 175 150}
- (1 990 490}
- 509 510
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2024 2023

9.8 Library Grant

Opening balance .
Granls received 1643 000 1 060G 000

Conditions mel - Operaling {1043 000} {1 000 000}
Conditions mel - Capital - -

Conditions stlll te be met - .

The granl was used lo finance library activilies,

19.7  Northern Cape Tourism Authority

Opening balance 1027 1027
Grants received .

Condilions met - Operating . .
Conditions met - Capital . -

Canditions stifl Lo be mat 1827 1027

The gran! was used lo finance tourism aclivities,

49.8 Namakwa District Muniglpality

Opening balance 87 041 208 810

Grants recaived - .
Conditions mel - Cperaling (30 800} {121 769)
Condilions mel - Capital N -

Conditions still is be mel 57 041 87 041

The grant was used for various projecls,

19.%  Project Nala

Gpening balanca 620 180 620 180
Granis received - -
Conditions met - Operaling - -
Conditions met - CapHal - -

Caonditions still lo be met 520 180 620 180

The grant was used for job crealion.

45,10 Depardment Finance, Economic Development & Tourism

Opening batance 100 008 100 460
Grants received - .
Conditions met - Operating - .
Conditions met - Capital . -

Condiliens atilt fo be met 106 000 460 600

The grant was used for job creation.

19.11 Department Sport, Arts and Cufture

Dpening balance 6262 6 262
Grants received . -
Conditiens met - Operating -
Conditions met - Capilat

Conditions stil to be mel 6 262 5262

The grant was used for various related projects.

19.12 Department of Social Services

{Opening bafance 482 482
Coirection of Ercor - -
Grants received - -
tnterest received _

Repaid to National Revenue Fund -
Conditions met - Operating - -
Conditions met - Capital -

Conditions s to be met 482 482

The grant was used for Covid-19 refief.
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2024 2023
R R
18.12  Iotal Grants
Opening balance 5035 485 7085 176
Grants receivad 43 445 000 46 102 11
Repaid to Natiopal Revenue Fund (4 221 000} {4 682 100)
Conditions mel - Operating {32 828 437} (37 114 688)
Conditions mel - Capital (7 122 034) {6 365 103)
Conditions stilf to ba met 1308014 5 035 485
Disclased as foilows:
Unspent Condilional Govemment Grants and Receipis 1308 532 5035 004
Unpaid Conditional Government Grants and Receipts - -
Totai 1308 532 5035004
20. SERVICE CHARGES
Electricity 10926 217 § 546 074
Service Chaiges 12 804 336 5 848 Zﬁa
Bafance previousty staled 8206 285
Ceorreclion of Emor - Nete 36,10 (2 658 092)
Legs: Revenue Forgone {1878 119} {2 128)
Watar 3072353 1042423
Service Charges 4304 012 2320630
Less: Revenue Forgone (1231659) {1278 208)
Waste Management 1 850 673 1776 256
Service Charges 3036 489 3101 398
Less: Ravenue Forgone {1185 817) {1325 140}
Waste Water Management 1778 605 1883 023
Service Chargas 2303298 2 340 168
Less: Revenue Forgone (524 651} {457 145}
Totat Service Charges 17 627 84T 10 247 777
Ravenue Forgone can be definad as any income that the Municipality is, by law, entited lo levy bt which has subseguenliy been forgone by
way of rebate or remission.
21, SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES
Building Plan Appraval 14 482 {1 565)
Camping Fees 2388 9110
Photocopies and Faxes 6226 6522
Sale of Goods 20 320 13 087
Total Sales of Goods and Rendering of Services 431 425 27 134
22, RENTAL FROM FIXED ASSETS
Investment Property 185 369 154 706
Property, Plant and Equipment 27 318 2231
Total Rentat from Fixed Assets 212 687 174 017
23 INTEREST BARNED - EXTERNAL INVESTMENTS
Bank 488 640 428295
Tofal Interest Earned - External Investments 488 640 428 205
24, INTEREST EARNED - QUTSTANDING RECEIVABLES
Trade Receivablas 5 836 166 5 980 044
Interest Earned - Non-Exchange Transactions 5021 114 $ 406 880
Total interest Earned - Qutstanding Receivables 10 857 280 41486 924
25, OPERATIONAL REVENUE
Debl Relief 2987 043 3168 340
insurance Refund - 439 212
Staif Recoveries - R
Totai Operational Revenue 2987 043 3607 562
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2024 2023
R R
28, EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
Basic Salaries and Wages 20727838 19 953 924
Pension and UIF Contributions ’ 2 886 768 2755 487
Medical Aid Gontributions 880 793 B4B 118
Overtime 885 284 TTT 453
Bonuses 1254 571 1 288 836
totor Vehicle Afcwance 974 98¢ 960 977
Cell Phone AHowanca 85 300 88 550
Housing Allowances 180 230 166 804
Olhar benefits and allowances 416632 291 035
Payments in fieu of leave 481097 245 175
Skifis Devetoprment Fund Levy 279799 265 424
Post-retirernent Benefit Obligations &40 600 635 000
Totai Employee Refated Costs 29 687 382 28 256 576
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL.
Key management persennet are all appointed on 5-year fixed conlracts. There are no post-employment o termination benefits payable to
them at the end of the coniracl periods.
REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Remuneration of the Mupicipal Manager - Mr RC Beuies
Basic Salary 713283 622 380
Bension and UIF Contribulions 110 484 106 £63
Medical Aid Contributtons 32 810 30834
Motar Vehicle Alowance 2680 189 250 658
Cell Phone Alowance 22 800 22 800
Housing Allowances 12 420 12 420
Other benefits and allowances 104 068 100 263
Paymenls inliew of leave - 110 189
Total 12656 034 1256 118
Remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer - Mr F Strauss (cusrentj
Basic Salary 624 495 -
Penston and UiF Contributions 21425
Molar Vehicle Allowance 205 159
Celt Phone Allowance 2% 885
Housing AHowancas 11927
Other benefils and allowances 82 064 -
Total 947 668 -

Remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer - Mr TE Diphiokeje (previous)
Basic Salary - 30973
Pension and UIF Contributions - .
Medical Ald Contributions - -
Molor Vehicle Allowance

Cell Phone Allowance
Housing Allowances

Other benefits and allowances
Payments in figu of leave

Total - 30573

Remuneration of Senlor Manager ! Corporate Services and LED - Mr GW von Mollendorf

Basic Salary 109 188 T47 940
Pension and UiF Contributions 177 2125
Performance Bonus

Motor Vehicle Aliowance 7500 9¢000
Cell Phona Allowance 750 8000
Housing Alfowances 1035 12 420
Cther benefits and ailowances 7 101 8z 341
Paymerts in tleu of leave 32 497 -
Totai 158 248 943 807

Remuneration of Senior Manager : Technlcal Services - Mr HT Cloete

Baslc Safary 80 927 532816
Pension and UIF Conlributions 5853 81 107
Madical Aid Contributions 8107 47 333
Motar Vehicle Allowance 14 183 170 319
Cell Phone Allowance 750 9000
Housing Allowances 1835 12 420
Other benefits and allowances 8453 82321
Payments in lieu of leave 76 996 -
Total 216 314 945117
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2024 2023
R R
Remuneration of Senfor Manager : Technicai Services - Mr TR Cloefe
Basic Safary 195 895 -
Pension 2nd UIF Contribulions 708 -
Motar Vehicle Allowance 52 958 -
el Phone Allowance 8 805 -
Housing Allowances 3598 -
Other benefils and allowances 24 918 -
Tatal 204 682 -
Total Key Management Remuneration
Basic Salary + 537 893 $ 933919
Pension and UIF Contributions 12B 638 199 786
Madical Aid Coniributions 40917 78 167
Wotor Vehicle Allowance 487 421 510 977
Celi Phone Aflowance 46 195 40 800
Housing Allowances 26 417 37 260
Other berefits and aliowances 201 686 264 806
Payments in lieu of leave 109 483 10 189
Total 2678262 31760614
REMUNERATION OF COUNCILLORS
SC Mera {Mayor} 941 362 BG8 874
MW Cioete (Speaker) 763 334 720 644
8C Brandt {Chiel Whip) 422 436 398 21¢
RG Closte 331 368 312 076
LE Pelersen 331369 314 797
CC Kordom 331 368 312078
CCC Coetzee 331 369 312076
58 Cloele 331 368 32078
D) Markus 331 368 3124078
MJ8 Hanekom 422 436 401 220
PA Smit 422 436 398 210
A Engelbrecht - 2721
MC Raoi - 2721
H Steenkarng 721
M Cloete - 2721
Totai Councitiors’ Remuneration 4 960 217 47063 220 -
Rermunerafion paid to Councillors can be summarised as follow:
Trave!
Salary Afowance Other Allewances Contributions TFotal
Mayor 574 392 214 134 105 217 45819 941 362
Speaker 424 305 171308 122 102 45819 763 334
Chief Whip 287 222 89 595 - 45819 422 438
Executive Commitiee Members 539 386 178 18¢ 35 059 81238 844 872
Counciliors 1281387 406 588 26 517 273714 1988 214
Total Cauncitfors' Remuneration 3108 682 106G 822 288 895 501 809 4980218
2024 2023
R R
GCONTRACTED SERVICES
{atering Services 74515 32 950
Security Servicas 16 670 33088
Transporl Services 134 590 82742
Accounting and Auditing 235813 1 068 010
Audit Committee 75189 100 648
Land and Quantily Surveyors 173 635 -
Qualification Verification & 261 9621
Valuer and Assessors 1477 565 1260
Laboratory Saervices 81600 71568
Legat Cos! 843018 566 457
Elesircal - -
Empioyee Weliness 111508 145 323
taintenance of Equipment - 388 823
Maintenance of Unspecied Assels 280718 290 510
Prepaid Electricity Vendors 644 672 452 845
Safaguard and Security 27635 4853
Total Contracted Services 3757 474 3255 637
DEFRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Praperly, Plant and Equipment 21 035 865 20 749 168
Praviously slated 19 350 894
Correction of Eror - Note 36,10 13689 274
Intangible Assels 55 351 38773
21 091 246 20 787 841

‘Total Depraciation and Amortisation
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2024 2623
R R
30, FINANCE COSTS
Long-lerm Bomowings 157 631 308 416
Non-current Provisions 3 555 778 1033328
Pravicusly stated 2 607 654
Corraclion of Error - Mote 36.10 {1674 328)
Non-current Employee Benefils 153 000 159 008
Interest on late payments ta suppliers 11 704 650 7 295 982
Total Finance Costs 15 671019 8797724
31, BULK PURCHASES
Flectricity 16 706 789 13887743
Water . -
Total Bulik Purchases 16 700 789 13 B67 743
32 OPERATIONAL COSTS
Advertising, Publicity and Marketing 132621 78 163
Audi! Fees 4749 548 3 409 026
Bank Charges, Facility and Card Fees 159 799 146 365
Courier and Debivery Services 380 1158
Communication 355 087 310 993
Exlernai Computer Service 87 030 846 849
Hire Charges 167 212 -
Instrance Underwriting 542 8671 357 402
Licances : 425 132 171266
Printing, Publications and Books 18 886 129 163
Professional Bodies, Membership and Subscripion . ' 513 250 507 708
Regisiration Fees 32698 -
Remuneration to Ward Commitless 212 000 262 500
Skills Development Fund Lavy 5 462 1824
Travel and Subsistence 2440 074 1752 005
Transpoit 45 000 10 500
Uniform and Protective Clething 48 961 95 522
Totai Operational Cosis 10 307 914 8 08 469
33 REVERSAL OF iMPAIRMENT LOSS! {MPAIRMENT LOSS) ON RECEIVABLES
Receivables from Exchange Transactions - Nate 7 3728 821 9 116 612
Praviously stated 6971170
Correction of Error - Note 38.10 2145 142
Receivables from Non-exchange Revenue - Note 8 7 545133 13015
Previously stated 13 185 791
Corraction of Error - Note 36.10 {170 659}
Tolal Reversal ef Impairment Loss/ {impairment Loss) on Receivables 11277 954 22132044
34 BAINSHLOSS) CN SALE OF FIXED ASSETS
intangible Assets - -
tnvestment Preperty - -
Property, Plant and Equipment (36 852) 364 978
Total Gains/ {l.oss) on Sale of Fixed Assets (36 852) 364 678
35 REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT £OSSH{IMPAIRMENT LOSS) ON FIXED ASSETS
Investment Property -
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Total Reversal of #npairment Loss! {impairment Loss) on Fixed Assets - -
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36, CORRECTION OF ERROR IN TERMS OF GRAP 3
The following adjustments were made to amolnls previously reporied in the annual financial stalements of the Municipality arising from the
tmplementation of GRAP:
2024 2023
R R
36.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
Balance previously reported - 240621 182
Cost - 475 833 440
Previously Reported - 474725 447
Correction of IGRAP 2 Adjusiment recognised in 2022/2023 - Note 2 - 1413893
Accurmutated Depreciation - (238 370 885)
Previcusly Reporied - (234 104 265}
Correclien of depseciation on landfill sites - Note 2 (1389 274}
Deprecialion an Furniture and Equipment recorded incorrectly in periods before 1 Juiy 2022 - Note 2 - {1 125 855}
Depreciation on Transport Assels recorded incarrectly fin periods before 1 July 2022 - Note - (1148 407}
Bepreciation on Computer Equipment recorded incorrectly in periads before 1 July 2022 - Naote 2 - {167 804}
Depreciation on Lease Assets recorded incarrectly in periods before 1 July 2022 - Nole 2 {434 180)
Restaled Balznce - 237 468 765
Conaclion of reclassification of assels between assef classes, movable assels and immovable assels recognised incorrectly in prior years,
and backiog deprecialion recorded incorrecily in prior years.
36,2 Investment Properiy
Batance previously reported - 21 488 786
Corraction of Investment Propedy nol recegnised prior ta 1 July 2022 - Nole 3 - 9 541 863
Restated Balance - 31048 628
Correction of invesiment preperty assel register.
38.3 Inventory
Balance previously reporied - 1087 739
Inventory recorded incomectly in 2022/2023 - Nole 6 - 173 943
Restated Balance - 12614682
inventory reéorded incorrectly in prior years,
36.4  Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Balance previously reported - 6926 383
Correclion of debt impairmant in periods befoere 1 July 2022 - Note 7 - 6527 734
Correclion of debt impairmenl in 2022423 - Nele 7 - {2 145 142)
Correclion of deblors' accounis in 202272023 - Note 7 . {2 658 082)
Restated Balance - 8 650 883
Comection of deblors accounts and deb! impairment calcufations.
36.5 Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Halance previously reparted - 997 848
Carrection of debl impairment in periods before 1 July 2022 - Nole B - 338813
Correction of debt impairment in 2022/23 - Note 8 - 170 659
Correction of debiors’ accounts in 2022/2023 - Note 8 - {7 833}
Restated Balance - 4 476 388
Correclion of debfors accounts and debl impaimment cafoultations.
36.6 Non-Current Provisions
Batance previously reported - 32570233
Cosrection of Landfil sites provision in periods prior fo 1 July 2022 - Nole 11.1 - {709 653}
Carrection of Landfill sites contribution recognised in 2022/2023 - Note 11.1 - (1574 328)
Comrection of [GRAP 2 Adjustment recognised [n 2022/2023 - Note 11.1 - 3846 478
Restated Balance - 34 132731
Comection of rehabilitation cost previously recognised,
5.7 Trade and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions
Balance previously reportad - 95 582 522
Corraction of sade payables in 2022/2023 - Note 15 - 536 748
Restated Balance - 96 119 269
Correction of Prepaid electricity purchased, but nof consumed. Cerections te Creditors,
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2024 2023
R R
36.8 Taxes
Batance previously reported - 16 104 086
Corraction of Outpul VAT in periods before 1 July 2022/2023 - Note 17 - 399 161
Restated Balance - 16 503 278
Correction of VAT on prior year iransactions.
36.9 Accumalated Surpiusf{Deficit) - 1 July 2022
Gorrection of Landfill sites pravision in perieds prior to 1 July 2022 - nMote 36.1 - 709 853
Degracialion on Furniture and Equipment recorded incorractly in periads before 1 July 2022 - Nole 36,1 - {1 125 855}
Depreciation on Transpoit Assets recorded incorrectly in perods before 1 July 2022 - Note 36.1 - (1 149 407}
Depreciation on Computer Equipment recorded incorrectly in periods before 1 July 2022 - Nota 36.1 . {167 904)
Depreciation on Lease Assats recorded incorectly In paeriods pelore 1 July 2022 - Mote 36.1 - {434 180)
Comrection of Debt Impairment in periods bafore 4 July 2022 - Note 36.5 - 8527734
Correction of debl impairment In periads belore 1 July 2022 - Note 8 - 3315913
Correction of Investment Froperty not recegnised prior to 1 July 2022 - Nole 3 - 9 541 863
Correction of Oulpul VAT in pededs befare 1 July 2022/2023 - Note 17 - 399 191
Total - 17 617 208
36.50 Changes to Statement of Financial Performance
Movement on operating account as & result of errors in implementation of GRAP standards in prior yars:
balance
previously Adjustments Restated
Note reported Balance
Revenue
Property Rates 36,5 12 437 520 {7 833) 12 429 688
Government Grants and Subsidies 42 034 339 - 42 034 338
Actuarial Gains 488 532 - 499 532
Fines, Penalties and Forfels 148 - 148
Interest Earned - Non-exchange Transactions 5 496 880 - 5496 890
Service Charges 36,4 12 905 868 {2 658 082} 10247 777
Sales of Goeds and Rendering of Servicas 27 134 - 27 134
Rentat trom Fixed Assels 747 - 174 017
interest Eamaed - Extemnal Investments 429 295 - 429 295
interest Eamed - Exchange Transactions 5990 044 - 5990 044
Licences and Permits fram Exchange Transactions 1645 - 1645
Agency Services 423 258 - 423 258
Operatienat Revenue 3607 552 - 3607 552
Total 04 027 244 {2 665 924) 81 361 319
Expenditure
Empioyee related Costs (28 256 576) - {2B 256 576)
Remuneration of Councitlors {4 703 220) - {4 783 220)
Conlracted Services 36.8 {3 255 637) - (3 255 637)
Deprechation and Ameriisation 36.1 (19 358 687) (1389274 {20 787 941}
Finance Costs {10 372 052) 1574 328 (8 797 724)
Bulk Purchases {13 867 743} - {13 867 743}
Inventory Consumed 36,3 {2 630 485} {362 805} {2 953 270}
Cperalional Costs {8 080 469} - (8 080 469)
Totat (80 524 829} (177 761) {90 702 580)
Gains and Losses
taventores: [Write-down)/Reversat of Write-down o Net Realisable Value - - .
Reversal of Impalrment Loss/{lmpairment Loss) on Recelvables 36.4 & 36.5 {20 157 561) {1974 483) (22 132 044)
Gains/Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assels 364 978 - 364 878
Total {19 782 583} {1 974 483) (21 767 065)
Net Surplus/(Deficit} far the year (26 290 168) (4 818 168) (31 108 326}
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR AND CASH GENERATEDR{ABSORBEDR) BY OPERATIONS

Surplusi{Deficit) for the year

Adjustments far;

Deprecialion and Amortisation

Lossf{Gain} on Sale of Fixed Assets

impaiment Lossi{Reversal of Impairment Loss)

Govemnment Grants and Subsidies received

Government Grants and Subsidies recognised as revenue
Contrbution to provisions — Non-Custent Provisions

Contribution frorvto - Gurrent Employee Benefils

Conlribution fromflo previsions - Non-Current Employes Benafits
Contibution framito provisions - Mon-Cuirent Employee Benefits - Acluaniat gains
Conlibulion to provisions - Bad Debt

Bad Debls writlen off

Operaling Surpius/{Deficit) befora changes in working capital
Changes int working capital

increasef(Dacrease) in Trade and Cther Payables

increasef/(Decrease) in Taxas

{increase)/Deceaase in inventory

{increaseyDecrease in Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
tincrease)Decrease in Other Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactons

Cash generatedf{absorbed) by operations

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents inctuded in the cash flow statement comprise the following:

Current Accounts - Note &
Call Deposils and Investments - Note 8

Tata) cash and cash equivalents
RECONCILIATION OF AVAILABLE CASH AND INVESTMENT RESOURCES

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Note 8
Less:

tnspent Transfers and Subsidias - Note 16
VAT - Note 17

Resowurces availabie for working capital requirements

UTILISATION OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES RECONCILIATION

Long-term Liabilijes - Note 10
tsed to finance properly, pant and equipment - at cost

Cash set aside for the repayment of long-term liabilites

Cash invested for repayment of leng-term Habilities

Long-term liabilities have been utiized in accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Acl.

BUDGET NFORMATION

The Annual Budget of the Municipality Is prepared for & 202324 MTREF period and Is applicaiz frem 1 July 2023 unfit 30 June 2024,

A recondiliation is provided on the face of the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the classification disclosure
differences resulling behveen the Budgel and the Annual financial statemants.

Explanation of variances between approved and final budget amounts

The reasons for the variances between the approved and final budgets are mainly due to virements, and the repriorlising of operating and
capital prejects.

Explanation of variances greater than 10% and larger than R905 000: Final Budget and Actual Amounts
Statement of Financial Position
Current Asseis

Cash and cash sguivalents

Lowar cash fevels due fo cash flow constraints.

Heceivables from non-exchange transactions

Receivables from pon-exchange fransaclions budgeted incemectly uitder Receivables from Exchange Transactions.

Inventory

No amount was budgeted for inventory on year-ent.
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(2B 654 211) (26 280 168}
20 994 201 19 398 668
521 236 -
(282 716} -
36 224 000 41 420 601
(39 950 471) (42 004 340)
3 555 778 2 607 654
294 680 {31 408)
542 000 581 000
(562 000) {428 000}
10 781 586 20 157 561
2375 211 -
5819 284 16 410 970
3829 970 (11 624 034)
24 590 161 14 465 439
(2 577 484) (2 458 794)
(1 506 327) (425 538)
(7 527 899) (10 800 213)
{9 148 481) {42 403 928)
95649 264 3 786 877
2024 2023
R R
17 438 (58 248)
520 584 909 460
838 521 851 215
838 521 851215
(820 654) (4 556 128}
(1 308 532} (5 035 004)
478 878 478 878
8867 (3704 914)
355 385 2313310
(355 395) (2 313 310}
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KAMIESBERG MUNICIPALITY
NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
VAT
Mo amouni was budgeled for VAT,
Other current assels
The muricipalify did not have any otfier current assets on year-end,
MNon-Current Assels

Property, Plant and Equipment

Decrease in Property, Plant and Equipment due fo addressing prior year audit findings.

investment Properly

Dacrease in investmen! Propery due lo agddressing prior year audil Andings.

Intangible assets

Decrease in Infangible Assets due fo addressing prior year audif findings.
Current Lizbilities

Trade and other payables from exghange transactions

tncrease in Trade and Other Payables a5 a result of cash flow challenges experence by he municipalily.

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions

Increase in Trade and Othier Payables as a resull of cash fiow challenges experdence by the municipality.
Provisions

Increase due fo incorrect budgeling. FPrior year amount nof used as basis.

VAT

Decrease dus o incorract budgeting. Prior year amount not used as basis.

Other current liabilities

Dacrease dug {o incomect budgsting. Prior year amount nof used as basis.

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrawing

Decrease due fo incomect budgeling. Prior year amount nol used as basis.
Provisions

Decrease dus lo incorrect budgeling. Prior year amount not used as basis,
Net Assels

Accumulated Surplus

Nel effect of reasons decumenied above
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue

Property rates

Decrease in propery rales due to reduced fax base,
Service charges - Electricity

Incemect haseline used for budgeling of service chamges.

Servics charges - Watar

Incorrect baseline used for budgeting of service charges.

Service charges - Waste Water Management

incorract baseling used for budgeling of serdice chames.

Sale of Goeds and Rendering of Services

incorrect baseline used for budgeling of safe of gouds and services.

Operational Revenue

Debt relief on cufstanding accoun! of Audilor-General.
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41.3.2 Expenditure
Employee refated cosis
Vacant positions of senjor managemen! not filfled during the year.
Bulk purchases - efectricity
fncrease in efecticily sales during the year.

Debt impaiment

Increase due fo incorrect budgeling. Prior year amount nof used as basis.
interest
Finance cost for rehabilifation of landfil-sites and posi-refirement provision nof included In budgeted amount.
Depreciation and amoriisation
Incorrect baseling used for budgeting of depreciation.
Conlracted services
increase in maintenance cosls
Imecoverabie debls written off
Bad debts wrilfen-off not included in budgel.
Gther Losses
Assels wilten-off during fie year.
41.4  Cash Fiow Statement
41.4.1 Net Cash from Operating Activities
Property rates
Non-payment of acceunts by tax payers.
Service Charges
Mon-payment of accounts by fax payers.

Interast

Incorrect baseine used for budgeting.

Gavernment - Capital
Repayment of grants to National Revenue Fund.

Suppliers and Employees

Municipality expeiience difficuity fo pay frade credifors.

Finance costs

Finance cost for rehabititation of landfill-sites and post-retirement provision nof included in budgeled amount.

41.4.2 Net Cash from investing Activities

Procesds on disposal of investment Property

fnvestment Froperty sofd ol included in budgel.

Capttal Assets

Repayment of grant funding to the Nalional Revenue Furd.
41,43 Net Cash from Financing Activities

Borrowing fong termtrefinancing

Mo new borrowings faken up dudng the year.

Repayment of Borrowing

Repayment of finance leases nof included in budget.

41.4.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the year end:

Lower cash levels due lo cash flow consliaints.
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2024 2022
R R
UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENIHTURE DISALLOWED
Unatthorised expenditure
Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure:
Opening balance 431 177733 368 524 621
Unautharsed expenditure current year - operationat 11585762 37 604 846
Unauthorised expenditure current year - capital ¥ 166 819 25048 266
Approved by Gouncii on 8 August 2024 {309 822 392) -
Unauthornised expenditure awaiting authofisation 140 047 922 431 177733
Unauthorsed expenditure can be summadsad as follow:
incident Disciptinary stepsferiminal proceedings
Dver expenditure of approved budgel - 2070 Underinvestigation - 29684
Cver expenditire of approved bidgel - 2011 Tider investigation - 28 371068
Over expenditure of approved budgel - 2612 Under invesiigaiion 16 738 583
Over expendiure of appraved budgel - 2073 Under invesligalion - 25203 5839
Dverexpendiuie of epproved bdget - 2014 Undar lnvestigation - 18 976 632
Bank Shordages - 2011 Under investigation B 28274
Fraud Vebicie Regisiration - 2011 Under jnvestigation - 78 504
Withdrawal by former CFO, E8 Teonljies - 2011 Under investigation 6 800 6 800
Over expenditure of approved budgef - 2015 Under invastigation - 18 055 902
Over expendilure of approved budget - 2016 Under investigation - 10 998 101
Cver expenditure of approved budget - 2017 Under invasligalion - 90 897 845
Quer expenditure of approved budget - 2078 Uinder investigalion 17 313 186
Gver expenditure of approved budget - 2018 Under invesfigation 29 029 602
Over expenditure of approved budget - 2020 Under investigafion - 27 597 078
Over expenditure of approved budgel - 2021 Under investigation 2 808 476 29 307 899
Over expenditure of approved budge! - 2022 Unider invasfigation 55 888 853 55 888 953
Over expenditure of approved budget - 2623 Linder investigation 44 83 723 44 183 723
Over expendilure of approved budge! - 2024 Linder invesiigation 16 289 648 .
118 175 748 412 708 344
2024 2024 2024 2024
Actual Final Budget Variance Unauthorised
R R R R
Unauthorised expenditure surrent year - operating
Executive and Cauncil 11 838 414 18 719 208 {6 880 882) -
Finance and Administration 54 629 675 53 230 159 1389 516 13948 516
Waste Managemant 10 638 717 7 546 108 3082 609 3092609
Water 10 335 917 & 695 847 4640 070 4 840 070
Electicity 21704 007 25 600 637 {3 898 530) -
Economic and Scciat Develapment 4 720739 2328 420 (685 681} -
Technical and Roads 3702202 5671032 {1888 830) -
Wasle Waler Management 2692 509 238941 2453 568 2 453 568
147 262 179 119 345 800 (2 482 821) 11 686 762
2024 2024 2024 2024
Astual Final Budget Variance Unauthorised
R R R R
Unauthorised expenditure current year - capita .
Exacutive and Councit 31898 - 31 886 31896
Water Distribution 6793 208 342 248 8 450 963 6 450 863
Electricity 146 790 513 368 {366 578) -
Economic and Social Development 855 B57 - 655 857 £56 B57
Sewerage 3081671 12 733 321 {8 651 B5D) -
10 709 423 13 588 935 {2878 512} 7138716
2024 20231
R R
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Reconciiation of frullless and waslefut expendilure:
Opening balance 26 803 175 19 516633
Correction of prior perod arror - -
Reslated opening balance 26 803 175 16 516 633
Fruittess and wasteiul expendilure current year 10 112 822 7286 541
Condaned or writlen off by Council - -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement 6 915 997 26 803175
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2024 2023
R R
Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure can be summarised &s faflow:
incident Discipiinary steps/criminal proceedings
Legal Cost {Hondaklipbaai Stands) - 2011 Under investigation 199 191 198 184
Inferast on fate Credifors payments - 2017 Under investigation 417 306 417 306
Inferest on fale Credjtors payments - 2012 Under investigaiion 172 301 172 304
Interesf on fate Credilors paymenis - 2014 Under investigalion 255 948 265 948
Interest on lale Creditors payments - 2015 tinder investigalion &37 535 537 535
Safary payment fo J Links after dismissal Linder ipvestigation 8417 8 417
interest and penallies paid to SARS - 2014 Under investigation 204 548 204 6548
inferest and penaities paid to SARS - 2015 Under invastigation 363 136 353138
interest and penallies paid fo SARS - 2017 Under invastigation 286 0689 286 069
Interest paid to various suppliers - 2016 Under Investigation 2 444 160 2 444 160
Interest paid o various suppliers - 2017 Under investigalion 1718 782 178792
Inferest paid fo vanous suppliers 2018 Under invesfigation 1626 031 1626 031
Legal Cosf (LJ Swarl case) - 2018 Under invesfigalion 872 243 872 243
Interast and penallies paid fo SARS - 2078 Under invastigation 211589 211 888
Intersst paid to vanous sugphiers 2018 Under invesligation 2204875 2204 875
Interest paid (o varioys suppliers 2020 Under invesligalion 2743843 2 743 843
Interest paid to various suppliers 2021 tinder investigation 751 298 751288
inferest paid to various suppliers 2022 LUnder investigation 4 509 354 4 509 354
inferest paid fo various suppliers 2023 Lnder invesligaltion 7 286 844 7286 541
Interest paid fo various suppliers 2024 Under jnvaestigation 10112822 -
36 915 997 26 803175
42.3 lrregular expenditure
Reconcdiation of irreguiar expenditure:
Opening bafance 132 047 879 120 325 233
Cosrection of priar period esrof - -
Restated opening balance 132 947 679 126325233
lrregutar expenditure current year 11 B40 514 11722 448
Expenditure autharised i.t.o. Section 32 of MERMA - -
Iregular expenditure awaiting further action 143288193 132 047 678
tmegular expenditure can be summarised as foflow:
Incident Disciplinary stepsforiminal progessings
Expanditure conlrary to SCM Processes 2010 Under investigation 3715 210 3715 210
Expenditure coplrary fo SCM Processes - 2012 Under Investigation 2 661945 2661 945
Expenditure canlrary to SCM Processes - 2017 {Inder investigation 1118 745 1118 745
Proference point syslem not used for bids befween R30 600 and
R200 000 Under investigation 1935162 1935162
Tax Reference numbers nof obtained for transaclions betwesn
R16 002 - R30 060 Under investigation 1349975 1348978
No dectaration of inferes! forms (MBD4) Undler investigation 55 979 55978
Expenditure contrary to SCM Processes - 2016 Under investigation 233 400 233 100
Granfs used for operating purposes - 2016 Lnder invesfigation 3539 704 2539 704
Expenditure contrary to SCM Processes - 2018 Linder investigation 777 TATE 7T
Preference points incormectiy calculated Under investigafion 68 008 58 060
Acting longer than three months not approved by MEC Under investigafion 87 897 87 897
2018 Irreguiar Expenditure Under invastigation 18 341 347 18 341 347
Expenditure wes more tihan R2 000 up fo R30 000 and was
procured without oblaining at least three writlen price gualalions 221780 2217680
and the deviafion was not approved by the CFO or fiis designate. Under investigation
Bid adjudicalion committee does nef consist of al least four
senior mapagers of the municipafity. Under invesfigalion 5t 785 862 51765862
Expenditure lotalled mare than R2 000 and fess than R20G 006
and was not awarded (o the fowes! price or the enfity with the 354 229 354228
oSt poinfs, Under investigation
Pravider did not provide ME804 declaration of inferest3 Under invesiigation 1084 542 1084 542
Expanditure contrary to SCM Processes - 2020 Under investigation 3093079 3093078
Total paymenfs made exceaded the confract or quoled amount,
. ) . . — 4 400 4 400
including approved extensions. Under investigation
Expenditure conlrary fo SCM Processes - 2021 Under investigation 14 B2 151 14 862 151
Non compiiance on SCM: Bid Adjudication Committee Under investigalion 5 198 355 5180 355
Expenditure conlrary fo SCM Processes - 2022 Under invesligation 3 446 984 3 446 994
Expenditure contrary to SCM Processes - 2023 Under investigatiorn 11 722 446 11722 446
Expenditure conirary t9 SCM Pracesses - 2024 Under investigation 11 840 514 -
143 862 193 132 047 679
Recoverability of all iregular expendiure vill be evaluated by Coundil in tenns of section 32 of MFMA,
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2024 2023
R R
43, ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT
43.1 Contributions $o organised local government - [MFMA 125 {1)(b)] - (SALGA CONTRIBUTIONS)
Opening batance 5211336 4704 131
Councit subscrptions 563 000 507 205
Amount paid - cusrent year - -
Amount paid - previous years (66 080) -
Balance unpaid (inciuded in creditors) 5 666 336 5211 336
43.2 Audit fees - IMFMA 125 (1}c
Opening balance 4919 788 4083 484
Current year audit fae 6 034 255 4 454 844
Exlernat Audit - Auditor-General 5 261 986G 3920380
interast 772275 534 284
Amaunt paid - cuirent year {450 000} {458 000)
Amount paid - previous year - -
Credit note (2 987 043) {3 168 340)
Balance unpald {included in creditors) 7817 000 4919788
4.3 VAT - [MEMA 1258 (1)[e}]
VAT is payabie on the payment basis. Only once payment is received from the debtors is VAT paid over to SARS. Alt VAT retums have been
submitied by the due date Uweughoul the year. The net of VAT input Payables and VAT Qulput Recaivables are shown in Note 17,
434 PAYE and tIF - [MFRA 125 {1){c}
Opening balance 700 449 $ 178030
Gurrent year payroll deductions 4828 798 4 454 563
Amount paid - current year {3 665 964} {3 754 144)
Amaunt paid - previous ysar {691 815} {1 178 088
Halance unpaid {inciuded in creditors) 1171638 700 419

43,5  Pension and Medical Aid Deductions - {MFMA 125 (1){c)

Opening balance 1542 588 4116 148
Carection of prior perod error - .

Restated opening balance 1542 568 4 116 149
Current year payrolt deductions and Councif Cantributions 6 205 351 5 O77 486
Amounl paid - current year {4 584 840) {4 429 858)
Amount paid - previous year {1542 481) (4121 210}
Balance unpaid {included in creditors) 1620 598 1542 568

43,6 Councillor's_arrear consumer accounts - [MEMA 124 [1)(b)

The following Counciflors had arrear accounts for more than 90 days as al 30 June 2024: 2024 2023
uutstanding uutstanding
mere than 50 mere than 90
days days
55 Cloeta 2784 -
RG Cloete 16721 24 131

437  Disclosures in terms of the Municipal Suppty Chain Management Regulations - Promulgated by Government Gazette 27636 dated 30
May 2008

Regutation 35(2} - Detalls of deviations approved by the Accounting Officer in terms of Regulation 36(1){a) and (b).

30 June 2024 Type of Ceviatton
Amount Singte Suppller Impossibie Impractical Emergency

July 427 024 16 622 410 402 - -
Atigust 85000 - £5 008 - -
September 146 097 - 146 007 - -
{Oclober 2062024 - 202 024 - -
November 266702 - 286 702 - -
December 114 435 - 114 435 - -
January 214 139 3520 240618 - -
Fabruary 513 382 - 513 362 - -
tarch 72 440 - 72 440 - -
Apail 263 279 " 253279 -
BAay 324 996 - 324 596 - -
June 108 872 - 108 §72 - -

2708 380 20142 2 688238 - -
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36 June 2023 Type of Deviation
Amount Single Suppler smpaessible Impracticat Emergéncy
Juily 393 698 2522 391 176 - B
Algust 74 478 - 74 476 - -
September 278 662 - 278662 - -
Celober 81772 - 41772 - -
iovember 40080 - 40 800 - -
Decermnber 198 388 - 198 388 - -
January 134 8 - 134 a4i - -
February Tib 800 - 15 000 . -
March 48714 16 223 32 491 - -
April 198 780 - 198 780 - -
May 108 868 - 108 869 - -
June 84 382 - 84 282 - -
1 767 680 18 145 1748938 - -
2024 2023
R R

Material losses
ElestricHy distribution logsas
Units purchased {Kwh) 6923 304 6 834 585
Units tost dusing distibution {Kwh} 597 760 4 047 229
Percentage fost during disidbution 8,63% 15,32%
Distribulion foss {Rand Value) 8325543 5082 955
The reasan for the increase in electricily lasses is due to eleclricity theft on pre-paid melers. Fines were issued for first ime offenders.
Water gistribution tosses
tnits purchased {ml} 193 860 B1787
Units lest during disleibution {mi} 100 807 14 235
Percentage lost during distribution 52,00% T A%
Distribution loss (Rand Vaiue) 1 5688 BO7 14 238
Normat pipe burs!s and field leakages are responsibie for water josses.
Skilis Davelopment Levy - IMEMA 125 {1}c)]
Opening balance 43 419 a5 265
Current year payrell dedustions 285261 267 318
Amount paid - curent year , {213 342) {223 899}
Corection of prior period efror . -
Amount paid - previous year (18 7580) (95 268)
Halance unpald (inciuded in creditors} 86 548 43 419
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Tha aclivities of the municipality expase it to a variety of financial fisks, including marke! risk {comprising fair valus interest rate risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and price risk), credit fisk and liquidity risk. The municipality's overall risk management programme focuses on lhe
unpredictability of financis! markets and seeks to minimise potenlial advarse effects on the municipality’s financial performance.
[a) Forelgn Exehange Currency Risk

The municipatity does not engage in foreign currency transactions,
{b) Price Risk

The nwnicipality is not exposed o price figk.
{c) Interest Rate Risk

As the municipality has significant interest-bearing fiabilities, the entity’s income and operaling cash flows are substantiaily dependent on

changes in market interest rates.

The mupicipality analyses its polential exposure 1o interest rale changes on o conlindous basis. Differant scenarios are simulated which

inciude refinancing, renewal of current posilions, altemative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the entity calculales the

impact that a change in inlerest rates will have on the surplus/deficit for the year. These scenaries are only simulated for liabilities which

constitute the majonily of interest bearing liabilites.

The municipality did not hedge against any interesl rate sisks during the cuirent year.

2024 2023
R R

The potential impact on the entity's surplus/{deficil) for the year due to changes in interest rates were as follow;

1% (2023: 1%) Increase in interest rates 4831 {14 621)

1% (2023 1%) Decrease i interest rates {4 831) 14 621
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{d} Credi Risk

Credit fisk Is Ihe sk that a counter party to a financial or non-financiat assel will fall to discharge an ahbiigation and cause the Municipality
to incur financial loss.

Credit risk arises mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, trade and olher raceivables and unpaid conditionat grants and subsidies.

Trade and other receivables are disclosed net after provisions are made for Impalmment and bad debts, Yrade receivables comprise of 2
lasge number af ratepayers, dispersad across different sectors and geographical areas, Ongeing ¢redd evaiuations are performed on the
financial condition of these dehters. Credit sk peraining to trade and other receivables is considered ta be moderate due the diversified
nature of receivables and immatarial pature of individual balances. In the case of consumer debtors the municipatity effectively has the
right to terminate services lo customers but in praclice his is cifficull to apply. in the case of debtors whese accounts becoms in arrears,
Councl endeavours te collect such accounts by "levying of penally charges”, "demand for payment”, "restriction of services” and, as a fast
resort, "handed over for collection”, whichever procedure is applicable in terms of Councd's Credit Contral and Debt Collection Paficy.

All services are payable within 30 days from invoice dale. Refer fo note 7 and 8 for all balances outstanding fonger than 30 days. These
balances represent all debtors al year end which defauted on thelr credit terms.

2024 2024 023 2023

% R % R
Non-axchange Receivables
Other Receivables 106,00% 459 275 180,08% 499 275

108,00% 499 275 100,00% 499 275
Exchange Receiyables
Eleclricity 10,53% 9686 423 11,26% 9013 966
Water 38, 14% 36 196 919 39,12% 31321385
Waste Management 17 82% 17 612 961 17.45% 13732218
Wasle Water Management 10,05% 9 B43 G786 4.41% 7 534 858
COther 23,38% 22 164 BO7 23,65% 18 454 788

100,00% 94 914 275 $00,00% 80 057 131

No receivables are pledged as security for financial Habilittes.

Pue to short lerm nature of lrade and other receivables the carrying value disclosed in note 7 and 8 of the financial statements is an
approximation of ifs fair value, Interest on overdue balances are inciuded at a rate determined by council where appiicabte.

The provisian for bad debls could be afiocated between the different classes of receivables ag follow:

2024 2024 2023 2023
% R % R
Non-exchange Receivablgs
Other Recaivables 8,00% - 0,00%
Exchange Recejyables
Services 100,06% B4 331 255 100,60% 80 028 815
100,00% B4 331 255 400,60% 80 026 815
The provision far bad debts could ba allocated between the differant categorias of receivables as follow:
Exchange Non-exchange
Adeing of amounts past dus but ot impaired are as follow: Receivables Receivabies
2024
1 month past dug 1742 544 -
7+ months past due 7 337 440 -
9079 984 -
2023
1 month past dueg 1 187 400 -
2+ months paslt due 6 171085 -
7 358 485 -

The entity only deposits cash with major banks wilth high quality credit standing. No cash and cash equivalents were pledged as security
far Financiat Habdities and no restictions were placed on the use of any ¢ash and cash sguivatenis for the pericd undar review. Although
the credil risk periaining to cash and cash equivalents are considered to be low, the maximum exposure are disclased below.

The banks utlised by the municipality for current and non-current investments are all fisted on the JBE {ABSA Bank Limited). The credit
quality of these inslitutions are evaiualed based on their required SENS releases as wel as other media reperts. Based on all pubfic
communications, the financial sustainabiiity is evaluated to be of high guality and the cradit risk pertaining fo these institulions are
consitlered fo be fow.

Oter Deblors are individually evaiuated annuaily al Balance Shaet date far impairment or discourding. A report on lhe various calegories
of debtors is draftad to substantiale such evaiualion and subsequent impairment / discounting, whese applicable.

2024 2023
R R
Financial assets exposad lo credit risk al year end are as foliows:
Receivables from exchanga transactions 94 914 275 89 253 318
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 488 275 499 652
Cash and Cash Equivalents 838 521 851215
96 252 072 90804 184
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Prudent fiquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the avaitability of funding through an adequate amount of
committad credit faciiies. Due to the dynamic nalure of the undedying business, the treasury maintains flexibility in funding by

maintaining avaitahility under credit lines.

The entity's risk to fiquidity is a resuit of the funds svailabla to cover future commitments. The entily manages fiquidity risk through an

ongoing review of future commitments and cradit facilitfes,

The table below snalyses the entily's financial liabilities into refevant matunty groupings based on the remaining period at the financial
year end (0 the conlractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are te contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balancas tdue
within 12 months equa! their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is nat significant.

2024

Long-tarm Liabilties
Trade and Other Payables

2023

Long-term Liabflitles
Trade and Other Payables

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{n accordance with GRAP 104.45 the financial iiabilides and assels of the municipalily are classifled as follows:

Financial Assets

Receijvables from Exchange Transactions

Efechricity

Water

Waste Management
Wasie Water Management
Other Artears

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balances
Call Deposits

Total Financial Assets
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Instruments at amortised cost:
Receivables from Exchange Transaclions
Receivables frem Exchange Transaciions
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Recelvables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Exchange Transaclions
Cash and Gash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivatenls

Tolai Financiat Assels
Financial Liabilities

Long-term Lizbiiities
Capitalised Lease Liahitity

Trade and Other Payables

Trade Payables

Advance Payments

Control, Giearing and Interface Accounts
Relentions

Lass than 1 Between 1 and & Betwaen § and Mare than 10

year years 1C years YEArs
722 291 - - -
120 708 430 - - -
124431722 - - -
Lessthan 1 Between 1 anc 5 Between & and More than 19

yaar years 10 years years
1772778 T2t 701 - -
96 119 269 - - -
97 882 047 721751 - B

Classification
2024 2023
R R
Financial instruments at amortised cost G996 423 9 013 906
Financial Instruments at amortised cost 36196 919 31321 365
Financial Instruments at amortised cost 17912 g81 13732 216
Financial Instruments at amortised cosl 9 543 G786 7 534 856
Financial instruments at amortised cost 27 184 887 18 454 7¢8
Financial Instuments at amortised cost 17 938 4 (43 488
Financial Inslruments at amortised cost 820 584 3839 485
95752796 87 540 104
Efactricity 606 423 9013968
Water 36 196 919 31321 385
‘Waste Management 17 042 961 13732 216
Waste Waler Management 9 543 078 7534 856
Other Arrears 22 164 897 18 454 788
Bank Balances 17 938 4043 488
Call Deposits 820 584 3839 485
95 752 796 87 940 104
Classification

Financial instruments at amorlised cost 355 305 2313310
Financial instruments a! amortised cosl 114 848 385 B9 886 525
Financial Instrumenls al amortised cosl 1777 223 18671 591
Financial Instruments al amortised cost 2 897 827 3 484 380
Financial instruments at amortised cost 1186 373 1188 373
121 064 825 98 432 579
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2024 2023
R R
SUMMARY OF FiNANCIAL LIABRITIES
Financia instruments at amartised cost:
tang-tarm Llabilities Capilalised Lease Liabilily 355 388 2313310
Trade and Cther Payables Trade ayables 114 848 385 89 866 925
Trade and Gther Payables i Advance Payments T7IF 223 1571 5¢1
Trade and Cther Payables Cantrol, Clearing and inferface Accounts 2897 827 3404 380
Trade and Other Payables Retanlions 186 372 1 186 373
121064 826 98 432 579
48, STATUTORY RECEIVABLES

In accardance with tha principles of GRAP 108, Statulory Recaivabias of the muricipality are dlassifisd as follows:
Taxes

VAT Receivabie 4 064 548 1865808
Recelvables from Non-Exchange Transactions 72893 893 63 845 035

Rates 72 4993 693 63 B45 035

Fines - -
Totat Statutory Recelvables {before provision) 77 058 441 85 710 643
Less: Provision for Dabt Impairment {52972 372) 145 423 239
Totat Statutory Receivabies (after provision} 24 086 089 20 287 404
Stalutory Receivables arises from the follewing legistation:
Taxes - Vatue Added Tax Act (Mo &9 of 1991}
Rates - Municlpal Properties Rates Act (Mo 6 of 2004)
Fines - Criminal Procedurs Act
Stalutory recelvables are initially measured at Yansaction value, and subsequently at cost.
[Rates): Ageing
Current (0 - 30 days) 1097 726 984 302
31-80 Bays 998 799 914 96
B1 - 890 Bays 941 164 a81 151
+ 90 Days 69 956 205 61064 886
Total 72 993 894 63 845 035
Reconciliation of Prevision for Debt Impairment
Balance at beginning of year 45 423 239 36 558 988
Centribution Lo provisian 7 549 133 8 864 250
Balance at end of year 52 972 372 45423 239
Ageing of amounts past due and impajred:
1 month past due - 836 948
2+ months past due 67 417 432 50 223 423

67 417 432 &1 650 374
Ageing of amounis past due tut not impaired:
1 monih pasl due 98 799 914 696
2+ months past due 3 479 837 2077 738
4478 736 2 992 434

Interest Received from Statutory Receivables

Taxes 5021114 4045 923
Receivablas from Non-Exchange Transactions . -

5021 114 4045423

tnlerest is lavied at a rate determined by the coundcil on outstanding ratés amounts,
47, PRIVATE PUBLIC PARTNERSHIPS

Councii has nol entered into any privale public partnarships during he financiat year.
48. PRINCIPAL - AGENT ARRANGEMENTS

48.1 Principal in ofher Principal-Agent Arangements {non-materiai)

Kamiesberg Municipality is the Principal in arrangements with service providers who sefl prepaid electricity on lneir behalf. Prepaid vendars
sarn commission on lhe value of each transaclion.

There are no reseurces under lhe custodianship of the agents, nor have they been recagnised as such.
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Agent in arrangement

The Muricipality is the Agent in the Principal-Agant amangement with the Provincial Depadment of Transperd, and collects licencing fees on
benalf of the Provincial Deparmant of Transpert. The munisipality can retain a portion of the feas collactac and the net amount Is due [o the
Provincial Department. The amount retained is recordad as income from Agency Services in the Statement of Financial Performance. The
amaunts dus to the Pravincial Depariment at year end is inciuded in the balances reported as Payables from £xchange Transactiens in lhe
Slatement of Financial Posilion.

The municipatity does not lncur any expenses on behalf of the Provingial Dapanment. Mo significant risks aré noled lo arse fram the
arrangement as the municipalily merfely collects monies an behalf of the department as parl of ils existing service offering at the ialfic
department and municipal cashier collection points. Mo resources are held on behalf of Ihe Provincial Department (other lhan the seceipts).

The Municipality was pafd 12% commission by the Provincial Departement of Transport for acting as an agent an its behalf dusing the financial
year.

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The municipality is curently engaged in liigation which could resull in damagesicosts being awarded agains! Council ¥ claimants are
successfut in their actions, The follawing are the estimates:

Kammieshera Municipality v PA Schreudsr {Gariss Magistrates Courl Case no; t0/2018)

Karmiesberg Municipalily has ledged an appeai to the High Court of South Africa, Norherm Cape Division, against the court judgement on 81
Aprii 2021, Contingent financial exposure of R25¢ 000

The case has been registered at the High Court of South Africa, Northern Cape Division wilh case no: CAxXRIZ/Z021 with the contingent
financial exposure remaining at R250 00Q.

Auditar-Genaral of South Africa agzingl sotity} Case Number 236/23 | R 10 606 of Legal Costs

Auditar-General of South Africa {against enlity} Gase Number 384/24 . R 40 000 of legat costs

Kofingnaas Befastingbetalers Vereninging {agains{ and by the enli Case Nr384/24 R 100 000 in Respect of Legal Cast
Aclion for recavary of oulstanding municipat ratas and tovies with financiat sxposire of RE0 000

RELATED PARTIES
Key Management and Gouncillors receive and pay for services on the same terms and conditions as other ratepayers / residents.

Related Parly Transaclions

Hravision tor

Quistanrding Dabt
Rates Service Charges Other Interest Balance impairment
Year ended 30 June 2024
Councilors
SC Nero 477 2357 - - 383 -
LE Pelersen 1432 3363 - - 648 -
MJB Hanekem 407 - - 5 - -
CC Kordom 477 2787 - - 635 -
RG Cloete 668 2373 - 1809 16721 -
MW Cloele 5632 13076 - 1332 -
{CC Coetzee 700 5195 - 177 2208 -
58S Closte 477 5230 - 24 2784 -
14 270 35 350 - 2115 24 693 -
Municipa! Manager and Seclion 56/57 Employees
RC Beukes B &8y 4021 - 1782 -
B 687 4021 - - 1782 B
Hrovisionr tor
Qutstanding Debt
Rates Service Charges Other Interest Balance impairment
Year ended 30 June 2023
Counciliors
SC Nere 453 2299 - - 187 -
LE Petersen 1 360 2671 - - 248 -
WJ8 Hanekom 386 - - 35 248
CC Kardom 453 2 432 - 118 {2}
RG Cioele 638 - - 484 5241
MW Cloete - 5718 - - 751
CCC Coetzee 8074 5028 - 511 78
33 Cloels - 4368 - 623 3702
DJ Markus 3354 2324 4 519 56 427
12718 24 833 - G 287 65 879 -

Municipal Manager and Section 56/57 Employaes
RC Beukes - - . .

The rates, service charges and other charges are in accordance with approved tarilfs that were adverlised o the public. No bad debt
expenses have been recognised in respect of amounts owed by refaled padies.

Related pajty relationship

Colncitors and management comprisas of thase persons respansible for planring, directing and controlling the activities of the Municipality,
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Retated Party Loans

Since 1 July 2004 lvans 1o counciliars and senior management employees are nol penmitied,
Compensation of key management personnel

The compensalion of key managemant personnet is set oul in note 27 to the Ananual Financial Slatements.
Current Employee Benefits

‘fhe Municipality has the following current emiployee henafit obligations and mads other noa-Employee Refated Cost payments towards senior
management on 30 June 2024

Staff Leave Staff Bonus Trav:el and
Posili Obligations Obligations Subsistance
Name Position G G paid
RC Beukes Municipal Manager 81971 - 198 762
¥ Strauss Chief Financial Officer 53 363 - 208 480
GW Von Moilenderf Senior Manager. Corporale Services - - 5 460
TR Clogte Senior Manager: Technical Services 23 518 - 17 759
158 B5¢ - 428 181
The Municipality has the following current employee beneflt obligations and made other non-Empleyee Relaled Cost payments lowards seniof
management on 30 June 2623:
Travel and
Name Postion Seaff Leave Statf Bonus Subsistence
Obtigations Obligations .
paid
RC Beukss Municipal Manager 32 668 - 176 585
TE Diphokeje Chief Financial Officer - - -
GW Von Moltendor? Senfor Manager: Corporate Services 34 260 - 25 311
HT Cloele Senior Manager. Technical Services 63 692 - 57 704
136 620 - 259 700

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

Managemant is of tha opinien thal will municipality wilt continus 16 oparate as a going concem and perform If's functions as set sutin the
Consiitution,

Tha indicators or conditions that may, individually or calleclively, cast significant doubt about Ihe going concern assumption are as follows:

Financial Indicators

The extremely high cosl associated with the Delivery of Basic Services and Infrastnuclure needs to communities due to the vast distances
behveen sevaral seitlements coupled with the socie-aconomic profie {high unempioyment rate] of Kamiesberg communities resulted in a
serous fisk for Kamigsberg Municipalily's going concern,

Unlzss sustainable job creation is achieved, Kamiesbarg Municipality will not be able lo function as a going concern without Government
Grants and Subsidies.

The averags creditors payment period is 1 248 days {2023: 1 185 days}.

The municipality is experiencing difficultly to settle its cument liabilities as its net current asset posilion is insufficient. The current fiabilties
sxceed the cumen! assels with RBR 246 870 (2023. R75 423 877). The muricipality has started discussions with Estom regarding the
setflament of the Eskom ascount with the assistene of Utility Consulting Solutions and aiso to procure cheaper electricity as the current
eleckricity model is making the municipality unsustainable,

‘The municipality has budgeted for an operaling deficit of R23 757 000 for the 20242025 financial year, and R16 419 000 and R32 710 0600
for the 2025/2026 and 202612027 years respectively. The municipatily has also budgeted for cash flows of R2 374 000, R2 491 008 and R2
808 Q00 for 20432025, 2025/2026 and 2026/2027 respeclively.

I spite of aloremenlioned, management has prepared the Annuat Financial Statements on the Geing Concemn Basis.
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERICD

No evenis alter the reporing date were idenlified by management that will effect the aperalions of the municipalidy or the resulls of those
operations significanty.

Gourt Case on Approval of tarifts fot the etectricity distiutien :

on the 17th November 2023 The National Engeray Reguiator of South Africia (NERSAnotified municipalitles In that Mersa, approach of using behchmarking and guidelines has been
set aside.and declairing unlawiul by the High Geurt in the Nerson Mandela Bay Chamber of Busuness ans otherd the judgentment allowed NERSA te revise the Municipal tanff Guideline t
it comphiant with the sesion 16 of the Electricity regiiation Act.

The above judgment was delivered when NERSA ,SALGA and Sustainable Energy Africa made available to al municapal licensees a siimplified cost if supply {COS) ool This simplified tool
shows a link bebween the require revenue and the cost between assisciated with supplying a caterogry og customers, thr ciassification of cosis between fixed and variable and enery
related demand -refated, and custemefreiated costs.

Howaver after the noica, Afriform submilted that NERSA deviated from the good path.in a notice dated 28th January 2024,

The courl judgment was delivered on the 8th Jaly 2024 municipat finacial year, which is after the reporting dale

_Part of the Judgement stales thal"For the 2024/2024 e .Part of thejudganont date stales the first repondent shall cansider and if they legally compliant which is after the reporiing date,
comgliaant approve such efecricity tarifs appiications by municipalities as are base on the municipalilies’s cost supply studues

timaously submitted by the muncipaiies as are based on the the municipailiires 's cost of aupply studies Smecusly submitied by the

Mative Dy the Noiive o the Muncipat Licenced Electricity Distributers, 17th Novamber 2024 {Annexure 'FA7" to the Foundation Affifavit .66 municipality were

sonsiderad ta be en-campliant.Kamiesberg Municipally was iniffally non-ccompliant with 6 days

bul hecome compiant within 80 days that was grantee by the High Court afler submission of the Cost of the Cost of Supply the in acun! will be for or fess R12 291 983 60

A QGauteng High Court judgement was passed which determined that NERSA’s assumplion mathod for approval of municipat etectrclty tanffs is

unlawfud, invalid and of na force and effect for the 2024/25 electricity larilfs unlass & cost of supply study has bean perormed and the lariffs are based on such a study.

This will be a non-adjusting event for the 2023/24 financial year but may have an impact in the next Enancial year.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF BROAD-BASED BLACHK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT ACT

Infarmation on compliance with the B-BBEE Act is included in the annual report under the seclion titted B-BBEE Compliance Perdformance
Inforrnation.
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